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2019
1,025,440,048 58.73
182,513,356 10.45
138,877,031 7.95
119,119,243 6.82
49,986,889 2.86
40,000,000 2.29
39,820,167 2.28
34,750,586 1.99
19,980,478 1.14
1,650,487,797 94.52
93,605,934 5.36
93,605,934 5.36
199,062,328 11.40
199,062,328 11.40
1,943,156,058 111.28
196,986,250 11.28
L7t 10,0
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2019
MONT BLANC CAPITAL CORP 02019 31 |64,242,000.00 |1.00 |64,171,762.08 |1.00 |64,242,000.00 | 3.68
DG BANK/NEW YORK 2.72 | 2019 17 [53,550,000.00 [1.00 |53,567,113.51 [1.00 |53,553,993.15 | 3.07
%EEERAT'EVE RABOBANK UA/NEW 0 | 2019 50,000,000.00 |1.00 [49,990,250.00 [1.00 [50,000,000.00 | 2.86
DNB ASA 0 | 2019 50,000,000.00 |1.00 [49,977,055.56 |1.00 [49,986,888.89 | 2.86
LANDESBANK BADEN-WURTTEMBERG 0 | 2019 50,000,000.00 |1.00 [49,976,763.89 |1.00 [49,986,722.22 | 2.86
FEDERATION DES CAISSES 0 | 2019 12 [50,000,000.00 [1.00 |49,960,333.33 [1.00 |49,970,250.00 | 2.86
BNG Bank NV 0 | 2019 14 [50,000,000.00 [1.00 [49,898,750.00 |1.00 [49,962,875.00 | 2.86
UNITED STATES TREASURY BILL 0 | 2019 50,000,000.00 [0.99 [49,712,416.67 |1.00 [49,894,222.22 | 2.86
UNITED STATES TREASURY BILL 0| 2019 10 50,000,000.00 [0.99 [49,412,458.33 [0.99 [49,595,027.78 | 2.84
10 | TOTALFINAELF CAPITAL SA 0 | 2019 13 [48,000,000.00 [0.99 |47,907,308.33 [1.00 |47,967,333.34 | 2.75
11 | B BANK 0 | 2019 26 [45,000,000.00 [1.00 [44,784,806.25 [1.00 [44,928,268.75 | 2.57
12 | REGENCY WARKETS NO. 1 LLC 0 | 2019 17 |42,772,000.00 [1.00 |42,673,980.83 [1.00 |42,730,416.11 | 2.45
13 | LANDESBANK HESSEN-THURINGEN 2.69 | 2019 13 [40,050,000.00 [1.00 [40,055,627.70 |1.00 [40,051,940.59 | 2.29
14 | LONGSHIP FUNDING DAC 02019 31 |40,000,000.00 |1.00 |39,950,000.00 |1.00 |40,000,000.00 | 2.29
15 | NATIXIS/NEW YORK 02019 31 [40,000,000.00 |1.00 |39,994,777.78 |1.00 |40,000,000.00 | 2.29
16 | FEDERATION DES CAISSES 0 | 2019 40,000,000.00 [1.00 [39,932,222.22 [1.00 [39,989,155.56 | 2.29
17 | CHARIOT FUNDING LLC 0 | 2019 14 [40,000,000.00 [1.00 |39,911,822.22 [1.00 |39,969,688.89 | 2.29
1g | JUPITER SECURITIZATION €O 0 | 2019 19 [40,000,000.00 [1.00 |39,921,085.56 [1.00 |39,956,444.45 | 2.29
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ATLANTIC ASSET
19 | ATLANTIC ASSED o | 2019 24 |40,000,000.00 |1.00 [39,912,888.89 |1.00 [39,942,833.33 | 2.29
20 | TORONTO DOMINION BANK o | 2019 25 |40,000,000.00 |1.00 [39,905,500.00 |1.00 [39,940,600.00 | 2.29
21 | EUROPEAN INVESTMENT BANK o | 2019 40,000,000.00 0.99 |39,751,000.00 |1.00 |39,820,166.67 | 2.28
22 | KELLS FUNDING LLC 2.6 | 2019 12 [35,000,000.00 |0.99 [34,785,955.56 |1.00 |34,977.600.00 | 2.00
23 | UNITED STATES TREASURY BILL o | 2019 13 |35,000,000.00 |1.00 |34,928,269.44 |1.00 |34,976,861.11 | 2.00
ATLANTIC ASSET
24 | AIANIC PSSED o | 2019 17 |35,000,000.00 |1.00 |34,925,858.33 [1.00 |34,966,516.67 | 2.00
25 | UNITED STATES TREASURY BILL o | 2019 20 |35,000,000.00 |0.99 [34,567,193.89 [0.99 |34,793,109.17 | 1.99
26 | KFW o | 2019 12 |35,000,000.00 |0.99 [34,560,438.89 [0.99 |34,750,586.11 | 1.99
27 | NATIXIS/NEW YORK o | 2019 33,281,000.00 |1.00 [33,274,482.47 |1.00 [33,281,000.00 | 1.91
CAISSE DES DEPOTS ET
28 | SAISSE DES B o | 2019 12 |32,435,000.00 |0.99 [32,156,459.93 |1.00 [32,414,282.14 | 1.86
29 $8EEERAT'EVE RABOBANK UA/NEW o | 2019 31 [30,000,000.00 |1.00 |29,996,100.00 |1.00 |30,000,000.00 | 1.72
30 | NRW.BANK o | 2019 30,000,000.00 |0.99 [29,815,325.00 |1.00 |29,995,850.00 | 1.72
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10 2019
20 950,703 103,969 1.00 109
2010 31 1.00 109
21 1,005,954 110,011 1.00 109
2011 31 1.00 109
22 1,251,708 136,887 1.00 109
2012 31 1.00 109
23 1,458,087 159,456 1.00 109
2013 31 1.00 109
24 1,610,501 176,124 1.00 109
2014 31 1.00 109
25 1,508,876 165,011 1.00 109
2015 31 1.00 109
26 1,322,727 144,653 1.00 109
2016 31 1.00 109
27 1,337,664 146,287 1.00 109
2017 31 1.00 109
28 1,386,833 151,664 1.00 109
2018 31 1.00 109
29 1,475,431 161,353 1.00 109
2019 31 1.00 109
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2018 1,458,231 159,472 1.00 109
1.00 109

1,504,248 164,505 1.00 109

1.00 109

1,421,273 155,430 1.00 109

1.00 109

1,412,208 154,439 1.00 109

1.00 109

10 1,397,970 152,882 1.00 109
1.00 109

11 1,404,828 153,632 1.00 109
1.00 109

12 1,447,583 158,308 1.00 109
1.00 109

2019 1,475,431 161,353 1.00 109
1.00 109

1,532,800 167,627 1.00 109

1.00 109

1,619,632 177,123 1.00 109

1.00 109

1,640,668 179,423 1.00 109

1.00 109

1,746,170 190,961 1.00 109

1.00 109
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HS5ABREI AVATATa—aF IVISHES

(L) (BRI (I (ERHEIL)
1.20 1.800 1.20 1 8O0
1.00 1.500 1.00 —— = 1.500
e ] 1200 0.80 H — Spiman | cae ARG 11.200
LEDF H 900 060 H — 104k BABERER) { @00
040 ﬁgﬁﬁ(ﬁﬁ:‘ Tt | &o0 0.40 {1 soo
D20 = ?E;ﬂﬁﬁg%ﬁﬁfﬁ“mﬁ’ {1 @00 020} 1 aoo
20085 20105 20115 20125 20135 20145 20155 20185 20175 20185 20185 20005 20105 20115 20125 20135 21145 20155 20165 20175 20185 20185
2009 2019 2009 2019
2009 2009
10

20 0.00083396 0.00177849

21 0.00074735 0.00074736

22 0.00087393 0.00087393

23 0.00110620 0.00110620

24 0.00061735 0.00061735

25 0.00103866 0.00103866

26 0.00151403 0.00151403

27 0.00504150 0.00504150

28 0.00844963 0.00844963

29 0.01704779 0.01704779
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(2015% 00 6518) | O000151408KKIL (e015%08- 201651/ | 0001514034k
COlEa i e1qy | 000504150%KI Ol ) | ©000504150%¢k
(2017%2R~2018 1) | 000844963 (017 oR B0 18515 | 0.00844963KKIL
(@018%2R~20158 ) | 001704778KK (2018%aR~ 2010817 | O01704778KKN
IR 1 4 M0 HRBt 0.0192737 74FIL 3T ) SRR A 0.01927377%FL
2018 2019
10

20 0.08 0.18

21 0.07 0.07

22 0.09 0.09

23 0.11 0.11

24 0.06 0.06

25 0.10 0.10

26 0.15 0.15

27 0.50 0.50

28 0.84 0.84

29 1.70 1.70

100x
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10
20 1,396,385,442 1,465,069,387 684,270,780
1,263,624,316 1,199,215,905 550,493,825
1,226,503,933 1,217,580,121 266,083,093
1,226,503,933 1,217,580,121 266,083,093
21 1,745,143,555 1,748,882,601 680,531,734
1,630,956,733 1,598,450,650 582,999,908
1,349,266,539 1,290,276,487 325,073,145
1,349,266,539 1,290,276,487 325,073,145
22 1,854,972,672 1,706,441,709 829,062,697
1,737,784,838 1,606,369,269 714,415,477
1,310,880,147 1,213,657,723 422,295,569
1,310,880,145 1,213,657,723 422,295,567
23 2,015,818,117 1,796,287,857 1,048,592,957
1,958,898,196 1,732,729,320 940,584,353
1,185,365,308 1,198,517,121 409,143,756
1,185,365,308 1,198,517,121 409,143,754
24 2,039,822,188 2,051,014,861 1,037,400,284
2,023,035,396 1,965,968,998 997,650,751
1,388,370,489 1,224,763,935 572,750,310
1,388,370,489 1,224,763,935 572,750,308
25 1,369,490,644 1,458,923,700 947,967,228
1,358,755,852 1,430,075,621 926,330,982
1,267,603,940 1,279,796,227 560,558,023
1,267,603,940 1,279,796,227 560,558,021
26 1,706,244,816 1,837,931,999 816,280,045
1,703,531,193 1,832,543,114 797,319,061
1,253,835,748 1,308,298,369 506,095,402
1,253,835,748 1,308,298,369 506,095,400
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27 981,224,754 995,227,073 802,277,726
978,428,043 987,658,075 788,089,029

639,291,551 610,353,532 535,033,421

639,291,551 610,353,532 535,033,419

28 945,457,833 831,548,152 916,187,407
944,711,014 827,280,259 905,519,784

511,557,600 576,301,555 470,289,466

511,557,600 576,301,555 470,289,464

29 1,839,298,837 1,765,762,901 989,723,343
1,839,273,764 1,761,748,934 983,044,614

497,859,080 482,802,633 485,345,913

497,859,080 482,802,633 485,345,911
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http://www._blackrockinternational .com/
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2019 31
109.36

23 103

23
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2(a)
2(a)

2(a)
2(a)
4,5,6,7,8

42
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1,479,554,113 161,804,038
1,479,554,113 161,804,038
662,256 72,424
108,342 11,848
1,480,324,711 161,888,310
239,379 26,178
2,887,227 315,747
1,766,907 193,229
4,893,513 535,155
1,475,431,198 161,353,156
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2019 31
2019 31 2018 31 2017 31
( ) C ) ( ) C ) ( ) «C )
1,475,431,198 161,353,156 1,386,832,717 151,664,026 1,337,664,002 146,286,935
( ) ) ( ) ) ( ) )
1.00 109 1.00 109 1.00 109
1.00 109 1.00 109 1.00 109
1.00 109 1.00 109 1.00 109

37 42
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2019 31
1,386,832,717 151,664,026
2(c) 8,809,242 963,379
2(c) 22,972,452 2,512,267
31,781,694 3,475,646
6,929,309 757,789
2,361,141 258,214
183,762 20,096
46,933 5,133
41,172 4,503
80,351 8,787
10 146,972 16,073
358,727 39,230
152,317 16,657
173,415 18,965
31,735 3,471
10,505,834 1,148,918
3,192,096 349,088
7,313,738 799,830
24,467,956 2,675,816
2(a),2(b) 12,193 1,333
2(a),2(b) (1,554) (170)
10,639 1,163
24,478,595 2,676,979
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2(h) 2,337,170,447 255,592,960
2(h)  (2,248,571,966) (245,903, 830)
88,598,481 9,689,130

11 (24,478,595) (2,676,979)
1,475,431,198 161,353,156
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2019 31
355,844 6,098 — 361,942
916,187,407  1,839,298,837 1,765,762,901 989,723,343
470,289,466 497,859,080 482,802,633 485,345,913

37

42
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2019 31

usb United States Treasury Bill 7/2/2019 (Zero Coupon) 34,986,449 2.37
35,000,000 B
usb United States Treasury Bill 12/2/2019 (Zero Coupon) 54,960,024 3.72
55,000,000 B
usb United States Treasury Bill 19/2/2019 (Zero Coupon)40,077,633 2.72
40,125,000 B
usb United States Treasury Bill 21/2/2019 (Zero Coupon) 27,963,133 1.89
28,000,000 B
usb United States Treasury Bill 28/2/2019 (Zero Coupon) 34,938,667 2.37
35,000,000 B
usb United States Treasury Bill 12/9/2019 (Zero Coupon) 9,847,307 0.67
10,000,000

202,773,213 13.74

202,773,213 13.74
usb Mizuho Bank Ltd/New York FRN 8/5/2019 30,000,000 2.03
30,000,000 B
usb Sumitomo Mitsui Trust/New York FRN 26/2/2019 35,000,000 2.37
35,000,000 B
usb Sumitomo Mitsui Trust/New York 2.79% 20/3/2019 24,999,993 1.70
25,000,000 B

89,999,993 6.10
usb ABN Amro Bank NV 2.84% 1/3/2019 50,000,000 3.39
50,000,000

50,000,000 3.39
usb Svenska Handlsbanken AB/New York FRN 20,000,146 136

20,000,000 20/2/2019

20,000,146 1.36
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uSD

20,000,000 Mizuho International Plc 28/2/2019 (Zero Coupon) 19,958,327 1.35

19,958,327 1.35
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USD 32,000,000  Nordea Bank AB/New York FRN 8/2/2019 32,000,238 2.17
32,000,238 2.17
211,958,704 14.37

usD Commonwealth Bank of Australia 19/2/2019 (Zero 24,967,250 1.69
25,000,000 Coupon)

24,967,250 1.69
usb CDP Financial Inc 15/2/2019 (Zero Coupon) 49,949,833 3.39
50,000,000 o
usb OMERS Finance Trust 19/2/2019 (Zero Coupon) 19,973,500 1.35
20,000,000 B '
uUsb Province Of Alberta 1/3/2019 (Zero Coupon) 32,933,267 2.23
33,000,000 B
usb Province Of Ontario 7/2/2019 (Zero Coupon) 30,387,232 2.06
30,400,000 B
usb Toronto Dominion Bank FRN 15/2/2019 37,999,612 2.58
38,000,000

171,243,444 11.61
uUsb BPCE SA 6/2/2019 (Zero Coupon) 9,996,597 0.68
10,000,000 B
usb BPCE SA 8/2/2019 (Zero Coupon) 15,756,490 1.07
15,764,000 .
usb Dexia Credit Local 10/9/2019 (Zero Coupon) 24,577,952 1.67
25,000,000 B
UsD Dexia Credit Local 23/9/2019 (Zero Coupon) 21,605,320 1.46
22,000,000

71,936,359 4.88
usb BASF Aktiengesellsch 11/2/2019 (Zero Coupon) 25,981,872 1.76
26,000,000 B
usb DZ Bank AG 4/3/2019 (Zero Coupon) 34,917,721 2.36
35,000,000 T
usD

DZ Bank AG 10/4/2019 (Zero Coupon) 13,827,120 0.94

13,898,000
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usD _
40,000,000 Erste Abwicklungsanstalt 19/2/2019 (Zero Coupon) 39,947,800 271
JUsh Erste Abwicklungsanstalt 28/2/2019 (Zero Coupon) 9,480,620 0.64
9,500,000 9 p 480, .

124,155,133 8.41
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usD
35,900,000

usD
8,081,000

USD
65,000,000

UuSD
29,410,000

usb
13,579,000

usb
50,000,000
uUSb
35,000,000
usb
35,000,000
USD
30,000,000
USD
15,000,000
usb
25,000,000
USD
28,684,000
USD
35,000,000

Matchpoint Finance Plc 11/2/2019 (Zero Coupon) 35,874,571 243
35,874,571 243
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corp 8/2/2019 (Zero 8,076.836 0.55
Coupon)
8,076,836 0.55
State Of Netherlands 19/2/2019 (Zero Coupon) 64,918,750 4.40
64,918,750 4.40
Oversea-Chinese Banking Corp 12/3/2019 (Zero 20303 657 1.99
Coupon)
29,323,657 1.99
Swedbank AB 5/2/2019 (Zero Coupon) 13,575,379 0.92
13,575,379 0.92
Albion Capital Corp 19/2/2019 (Zero Coupon) 49,936,000 3.39
Barton Capital SA 25/2/2019 (Zero Coupon) 34,935,133 2.37
Bedford Row Funding Corporation 26/3/2019 (Zero3 4,858 299 536
Coupon)
Caisse Des Depots et Consignations 7/2/2019 (Zerozg’ 987.700 203
Coupon)
Caisse Des Depots et Consignations 12/2/2019 (Zero 14,988,633 102
Coupon)
Federation Des Caisses 5/2/2019 (Zero Coupon) 24,992,695 1.69
Federation Des Caisses 7/2/2019 (Zero Coupon) 28,672,048 1.94
ING US Funding LLC FRN 12/2/2019 35,000,907 2.37
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USD

15,000,000 ING US Funding LLC FRN 8/2/2019 15,000,000 1.02
usb Kells Funding LLC 12/2/2019 (Zero Coupon) 33,651,553 2.28
33,678,000 J P oo '
usb Kells Funding LLC 26/2/2019 (Zero Coupon) 20,960,042 1.42
21,000,000 J P M '
usb La Fayette Asset Securitization 20/2/2019 (Zero
25,000,000 Coupon) 24,967,278 169
usb .
12,700,000 LMA SA Americas 6/2/2019 (Zero Coupon) 12,695,643 0.86
usb : -

Macquarie Bank Limited 12/2/2019 (Zero Coupon) 24,979,222 1.69

25,000,000
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USD
21,000,000
USD
11,400,000
uSD
42,492,000
USD
38,607,000
USD
22,000,000

2019 31

Macquarie Bank Limited 22/2/2019 (Zero Coupon)
Macquarie Bank Limited 11/3/2019 (Zero Coupon)

Manhattan Asset Funding 22/3/2019 (Zero Coupon)
Regency Markets No.1 LLC 14/2/2019 (Zero

Coupon)

Ridgefield Funding Co LLC 144A 17/4/2019 (Zero

Coupon)

20,969,375 1.42
11,365,946 0.77
42,344,517 2.87
38,571,868 2.62
21,873,958 1.48

520,750,817 35.29

1,064,822,196  72.17

1,479,554,113  100.28

1,479,554,113  100.28
(4,122,915) (0.28)

1,475,431,198  100.00

)

86.54
13.74
100.28
(0.28)
100.00

37

42
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2019 31
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2010 12 17 2010
2011
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2019 31

9,315,099 2.75
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31

2019
.727650 0.719100
.760312 0.757518
.005379 1.001753
.153760 0.153056
-147900 1.142550
.310999 1.307000
.127447 0.127484
274774 0.272978
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0.014061 0.014054
0.009203 0.009125
0.000899 0.000896
0.052500 0.052252
0.110887 0.110095
0.743163 0.739864
0.032550 0.032522

0.075283 0.073648

80/288



(f

(9

2019
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BlackRock Global Investment Series Combined

198,628

Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier
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1855
49 49, avenue J-F Kennedy, L-1855 Luxembourg

2019 31

2019 31

61,000

2019 17

0.0062
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10
2010 taxe d"abonnement
0.05
2010 174
0.01 2019 31
11
12
()
(i)
12
2019 31
65,000,000 2019 31
2018 26,000,000
0.15 FED LIBOR

0.90

84/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

13
2019 31

14

15

2019 31

80,117

3,219

16

17
2019 28
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Statement of Net Assets

as at 31 January 2018

Asnats
S Ouiles pOrdako M oS 2318081 573 AT Q02 240 53,177 460
Unrealised appreciationf{deprecistion] (81,051 332) 8,709,088 i G55 B34
Seunes pordobd 3 marke value Ha) 2,308,030,341 55, 7112426 104,034,114
Cagh 3 bark 3 11 452 675 144 485 1,211 458
D fnem: broker 16 ] = -
Interest and diidends recekvabie Ha) 4 58820 - 145 364
Fecenvatle for imestmerts sokd Ha) 5 BEI BT 242812 512,534
Fecenaie for Fund units subsonbed it 02,142 75,128 =
Linresalisad appeaciation o

Fuluses Contracts A 154 - -
Cafer agsets 128760 - 853
Total assuts 2054 44T B65, 174,980 108,905 361
Liahilitles
Cash owed to bank Ha) 23037 - -
Outstanding loan 12 - - -
Payatie for unfunded laan 0 198,678 B -
Fayable for investments purchased 23] 8530455 77387 1,312,835
Payatie lTor Fund units rede emed Ha) 1 36 569 353884 A3
Orvidends payabie Hal 4403 580 = =
Unreatized depreciaton on

Cpen fonvard foresgn exchange Barrachons d] 60801 - =
Swvaps o rackel value A 24 810 - £
Aecrusd expenges o other §abhnes 456748 4 574 530 1,274,805 277 564
Total liabilities 18270, 202 1,706,326 1,938 092
Total mat aes wli 23700 54 20 364 466523 103,965 269

Approved on behalf of the Board of Directors of the Management Company

e N

Direcior
ome 2 3 MAY 2019 Daie 23 MAY 2019

Tt nobea on peges 37 o 42 rm s ndegral part of thess finanod statemoats
[10] BlackRock Global Investment Series
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Statement of Net Assets

as at 31 January 2019 continued

Asats
Seourmes pordobo M oos RN P el K] 1478554113 31524, 287
Unrealised apprecation/{deprecistion) [42.053 807} - {2554, 145)
Seruities pordolin 38 marke valus 3 320, 7HIAE 1ATEESA 13 28,960,152
Cash 3L bark 23] 10,056,730 - 40,264
Cue froem broker L] L] - -
Inderest and dradends reces/abls HAal ABaTAN 662258 0,165
Recetvabie for megments sold Haj 4803 067 - 4318
Fecenages for Fund unis subscnbed Hal 107 BIG - -
Linrealisad appeeciation on

Fuluiet Conlracs N 154 - -
Oty assats 0 108,347 -
Total assuts 40,604,608 1480,324,T11 29,054 914
Linkilizias.
Cash owed to bank Hal - 230379 -
Dutstanding loan 12 - - -
Payatie for unfunded loan 0 138 678 - -
Flyysbis for imvistments purdhased ) 7. H0I7T3 = -
Payable for Fund unds redeered 3] 331 587 - 4754
Cragends payabie Ha) 1,565 062 2807330 41 603
Unneadised depreciaton on

Open fiorvsard foreign exchange ansdions Hd) E8.501 - -
Secaps o miskel waue ) 24 B1D - -
drerued expeses and other kabites 45678 1,158,551 1,768,207 188,493
Total liabilities 10,408 921 4 B3 543 244 350
Taotal met ans ety 338,167 58T TATEAIN 1880 26,550 564

Tt nobes on peges 37 o 42 form s integral part of thess finanoil statemeats.
Annual Report and Audited Acceunts  [11]

89/288



EDINETOOOO
O0OO00O0000000000o00o0noo0o0ogogodnoOn(es187)
OooOooooOoooooooooboood

Three Year Summary of Net Asset Values
as at 31 January 2019

Global Allecation Portfelie
Tatal nat ass wts usn 64 468,623 419 552, 160 FEE.650.238
et asset value [er.
A, Class non-distnbuting und uso 1 50 1570 1360
A Clags non-dretributing unit &UI0 AU 1658 1B05 15.58
A Class non-drstribubing ung JFY JFY 10205 11348 10018
Glebal Equity Income Portfolie
Total net asd et usn 103,966 265 131,523,000 141472570
et aset value per
A Class disiribubng und uso 1337 1543 13.00
F Class drifribabog und uso 1518 1145 1458
Incame Strategies Partfalio
Tetal nat ass et sl 30,167 54T I5E =T ATE 413537 543
et muaat value per
& Class drstribubng ung uso 538 572 S84
A Class distridubng uni 550 hedged G0 wmn B3 10,60
A0 Clats distibiting unt uso By o7E 863
B Clrss distmbuting urt uso S37 573 53.65
C Class destrintin g urd uso am I+ 0.1
J Class distnbuting und usn 53 5682 5.62
Super Money Marke! Fund
Total nat assets usD 1ATS 421,188 1388 2 71T 1T a4 002
et muaet vale per
Cormmon detibubng unt uso 100 1. 1.00
Current di Anbubrg urd us Lo 100 L.oo
Irrstgurional | dvsiributrmg e usn 1o 100 1.00
Warld Incorme Portfolia
Total net assets uso 28,850,564 35,761,108 45 504 529
Met asset value per
A Class drsfribubig ol usD o 1113 LI
A Class gisriubng und ALD AUD ez oS 10.95
A Class tirbubng unk BUR BEUR 40 1oy .02

Tt nobes on peges 37 o 42 form s integral part of thess finanoil statemeats.
[12] BlackRock Global Investment Series
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Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
for the year ended 31 January 2019

Het assets at the beginning of the year 2,260,086.873 419,552,168 121,523,008
Income
Bank mntrad Heh B 925 304 18302 -
Bond and loan irtenss Aed 45,588,271 - -
Deviderds (re of withhaddng 1) Aoy 4E2IATT - 3570 469
Carosr irComme T8 o] -
Total Inceme 55,043 180 41,727 388 485
Expanses
Bankimerss He) 4392 - 103
Mianagermers fept 4 134T 424 280 paE E1 483
Dhestritmtion fegs 4 7580430 2,824 pa@ 3483
Adrmaresirabon fees B 1078485 265 163 B8 085
Auditees 7 15R656 W ATH 14 455
Leqgal fees g 4 308 11,258
Frinting and other reporiing fees 270,955 B4 586 8.1
Subyseripon tao 10 51355 - 27,244
Coordination tees 5 586299 a7 A68 10,878
Depogitary feed B 571,530 § 067 118,863
Teansher agent teag I5EE3S 44 318 2.3
Loan commitrment fees 12 Eal Bl - -
Mncelineous fees ET e BI8T 11 6851
Total expenses before reimbursement 24 054 532 BAT4 Bdd BTG 30T
Fermbissement of epenses 4 3192098 - -
Total sxrpans &t after réimbursement 20802438 BAT4 Sl BTO30T
et investment incomat{deficit) 30,140,714 B3R A1T) 2,558 182
Fealised gain on bmestments 2[ak o) HA52177 10,514 904 TEIIT
Fealised [loss] on investments Yah, 20y [10E50.018) (200 056 [FAEFE(F
Met realized gandlossh on
Futistes Contracts 2dy {1.526) = =
Foreign curmenoes and fansamd loreign eschangs armscbon ). 2Hed {1 Eam ey (1,052 818 {1.248.587)
Opions coniracs 2id) {5.584) - -
TP AEBIDONG 2(d) 28.e53) - -
Hat reall sed gainiloss) for the year MBS 5,181,030 4,085,768
Cnange in ureeaised APPRECaRon on lmesments (13,038 52T) 145,205 B4 [1B.523.010)
Change in wreesdised {depreciabon] on investments (16982 303) (552 0300 (LRt k]
Bt change in unreaksed appreciationf{deprecistion] on
Fareign curmences and fanward loreign exchange ransactons Hd). 2He) 241 126 {33 {3,100}
Fuliere & Conlracts dy 154 - =
Swap FarEhDong 2d) {7 By - -
Crieons contracts 20d) o] - -
Net chamgs in unrealised appreciation(depreciaten) for the year 91,587 561) (45,797, T08) (20,516 887}
Inereas ei{Dacranss] In met assets as 3 result of sperations 42,022,102} (42.949,792) {14,162 557}
Movements In unit capital
T FeCEts &5 & resul of issue of s 2(h) ZATT I A4 73,154,842 24,518,797
Het payments s 8 resul of repurchase of unis 2n) [2435,738 454) (85,268 688) (34 819 358
Increas aifDecrease] in net assets as 3 result of movements in unit capltal 41,551 558 [12,433.764) {10,302 562}
Disderds daciansd n (40543 518) - (3085230 )
Mt assets at the and of the year 2310654 241 64 466,623 103,966 269

Tt nobes on peges 37 o 42 form s integral part of thess finanoil statemeats.
Annual Report and Audited Accounts  [13]
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Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
for the year ended 231 January 2019 continued

Hat assets ot the beginning of the year 386,887,878 1386 832,717 36,761,108
Income
Bank interest He) - 8809247 1,133
Band and loan irténess Aeh ¥ 585818 F2ATRA52 =
Dividderads {reed of withivolding Lax) Ae) - - §,0e32, 708
Ciher inCome: - = -
Total inceme 22,555,815 3,781,654 1,084 481
Expenses
B inlerest el 4,780 = -
Managemert fees 4 2198415 6,829,308 158,164
Duestritmtian fees i 1214 84T 2381 141 05 83D
Adrrewstrabon fees ] 511,382 183 TBX 51083
Ao fees T 58,741 46833 19024
Legal fees 121,830 41,172 18,543
Printing and other repomng fees 11,755 BO3% &5 0532
Suhscrpion i 10 177,135 HEQTE -
Coordanation fees 5 29,517 sarn 1,804
Depottary fees a 275,791 152317 3am
Tearher agent leed 105,251 173415 12429
LOan cormreimment fess 12 0d 452 - -
Miscefianecus fees 0,151 738 75,104
Total sxp before reimb 3 8715128 10,505 834 AN
Femburserent of expentes 4 - 3,182 086 -
Total eap after reimt BI5,126 TA3.T38 A2
et investment incom e (deficit) 16,8481, 853 24 46T 556 455 020
Fealisad iy of bnveslments Hal, Iy B, 258,002 12,183 154,861
Fealised [loss) on Investmerts Hak, 2w} {6,420, 009) (1.5584) (74 3@y
Het reaiieed gandloss)on
Futunes Contracts Hd) {1.926) - =
Foreign curmenaes and fonward foreign exchange transacions Hd). He) T21.54 = 1258 4B5)
Cptaons conlracts d) (5, ey = =
Swvap AN EAEHOnS d} {28,853) = -
HNat realised gaini{loss) for the year (1477, 145) 10,638 (273,962}
(hange n udealsmed SPORECECN o | emments {10,998 684) - {300,581)
Change in weealsed (depreci sbon] on Invesments. (10,548 65T) - (2. 353,829)
et change in unrealised apprecisbonddepeeciaton) on
Foreign cuerrences and forward foreign exchange transactons Hd, 2ed 244 189 - (80y
Futum = Confracts Hd) 154 = -
Sawa IAn SRCHONE d) [7.838) - -
CpRanns CORTacs 2(d) am = =
Hat chamge in unrealised appreciydoni{deprecistion) for the year (22,308,925} - (2,664 430}
Inere pai{De raxs 4] Im Mot 2450l 35 3 result of sperations {6,904 352) 24478 595 (2ATT 572}
Movements In unit capétal
Met recempls 35 & result of ssue of urds 2hj A1 244 807 2337170447 U Bt 343
Mot pryreris as @ result of repurcharse of unis L f] (617854005 | (2.248,570 968) (5.274)033)
Inereanal{Das reas o] in met assets as 3 result of movemants in unit capital {20.540,453) 83598481 (3,629 584)
Crviderds daclansd 1 (21.27T5414) 24 TR 505) |83, 284
et assets at the end of the year H30. 16T ST 1.475 431 150 20,850 564

Tt nobes on peges 37 o 42 form s integral part of thess finanoil statemeats.
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Statement of Changes in units Outstanding
as at 31 January 2019

Glebal Allecation Portfelle

& Clats nin-chaributing usl |B.F38, 263 1 BE3 320 3813604 18,845,778
& Clags non-chstribading uml ALICH B4 a7 1850530 (e o B,739.035
A Closs non-cistriouting umt 7Y e 155514 10561 B4 ol
Global Equity Income Portfalio

A& Class dsinbuting und 3,255 458 EEorE] BT 1BE3 T
F Class chsiributing uni 4570524 1,105 9654 1,330 BE3 4 MERIS
Income Strategies Portfollo

& Clits detiribiteng Lot B 55 0 455 684 127281 8,182 288
A Class deitributeng unl SGD hedged =0 Bod - INATe BE.FBD
AD Class distnbageng unt 24,300 % Es0 ™50 T5A0
B Class detnbigng une Bar.am oA 1508 E44 887
€ Class drtnbuting it 128,73 i 268 1534 12840
J Class drstriuting unl 57 108 732 B7E22T5 B3 338 54 566871
Super Money Market Fund

Conrernon & sinboteng unk 355,844 6,098 - 31842
Current destributng unt GG, 187 407 1,639 268 937 1,765, 762.600 998.713.13
Instusonal | gEnbuging unt 470399 #£4 457 855 080 4R2 800 B33 485 L83
Warld Income Portfolio

& Class destributing unt b BEE 208 13,577 bR 1388080
& Class destributing urt AUD B BOE, 128 173 61 B2 1444 403
A Class destributng ol EUR 457 116280 B7.7ER 263,130

Tt nobes on peges 37 o 42 form s integral part of thess finanoil statemeats.
Annual Report and Audited Accounts  [15]
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Super Money Market Fund

Portfolio of Investments as at 31 January 2019

BONDS France
USD 10000000 BFCE 54 B22018 (fero Coupon) 9806567 068
United States USDH IS T84 000 BPCE S4 &0 (Zer Coupen)  15,758490 1.07
LISD 35,000,000 United States Treagury B USD 15000000  Desia Credit Local 10572018
TN e Couponj Npegae 237 {Zero Coupon) M5BT 16T
LD 55,000,000 '-m;m ﬂﬁiﬁ'ﬁ:ﬂ;@?ﬂ S TaE USD 22,000,000 Deds Credi Local 13872019
A Coupan) 7 146
LSO 40,125,000 Undsd States Treasury B8 v = a0
187013 (Fern Coupan) M0TTEE 172 18638 488
LD 28,000,000  United States Treasury Bil & any
LIS 35 000,000 wﬁl’!ﬂmig Eh!.w&nﬁl; 27 905.05 aE USD 16000000 BASF Akpengessisch 112/2018
FRI0NE (Feen Cougpon) 34,938 BET 237 {Zern Coupon) 15804 872 176
IS0 10,000,000  Unied States Tredeury B LSO 000,000 DZ Bank AG Ar20018
1M07019 [Zese Coupon) BT 0T DET {Zera Coupon] MairFn 1
TR 137 USD 13800,000  OF Bank AG 106472018
s {Zera Conpon] 1a87a0 0.
Total Bonds WIiiaana a4 USDH40000000  Erste Alveckungtsnaat 1BE2018
{Zero Coupon] IWTEN 2T
CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT LS00 500,000  Erste Atwacidungsanstat 019
e {Zern Coupon] SAMIET 064
IS0 30000000  Mizuhe Bank LidMNew Yok FRN 12415605 641
IS0 35,000,000 Sc.l'n'lmfnlah'l e T Al Irsland
e P :&m?ﬂ T w00 237 US0 3500000 Machport Finance Fic 1172018
S0 25000000  Sumstorms Mitcu TrestMew Yok ' {Zerg Coupon) ISAMET 243
2.70% 20037009 24,550 Bea Lkl I5ATA5T 243
#9p29883 61D
Japan
Metherlands USD e 08 000 Sumitsmd Mt Bﬂm Corp
LISD SO000,000  ABN Amo Bark NV 2 64% 172019 50000000 338 82018 (Zern Coupon) BOT6EN 0.5
50000000 53 BOGEN 055
Sweden Netherands
US0 65000000 - State Of Hemertands. 1807018
IS0 20000000 Svermka Handsbanken S5H o Yark
FRM HW2mMa 20,000,148 196 {Zera Coupan) B491BTE0 440
MOM.E 136 B4A1BTE0 440
United Kingdem Singapare )
USD 79410000  Dwverssa.Chinkse Binking Corp
SR AONNG Mas e PR s 198 1232018 (Zero Cougan) 2037851 109
D 19ATBEST 6@
Swedsn
United States
LISD T2000,000  Hordea Bank ABNew Yok FRN USD 12,519,000 - Swwedbank AR S200ME
A I3 2 317 {Zeno Coupon) 13575379 082
no0IE 21 13575378 082
Totsl Cerficates of Depast 701858 704 144t s Umﬂu’:m?m .
u 000 Alaon Capsal Corp 182500
COMMERCIAL PAPER {Zenn Coupon] 49836000 339
WSO 35,000,000  Bamon Capank S& 2572008
IS0 25,000,000 Aﬁnm!:vm Bank of Augtrais iZera Coupon] Mm5033 297
e Va2 e mf.pm: agerzsg 1eg | MSOISG0000  Beoford Row Funding Corporation
ZAAINE (Zen Coupon) MpseIE 238
24 967 150 NER USD 30,000,000  Coasse Des Depots of Consignabons
TrAT0NE (Fern Coupon) 0887700 208
Canada USD 15000000  Caisse Des Depols of Corsignatons
IS0 50,000,000 COP Fnsrenl ine 1522018 1230 16 (Zade Coupon) T I )
Zero Coupon] A0 549 B 239 USDeI5 000,000 Federation Des Casses 522018
LD 20,000,000 OMERS Finance Trust 18722018 {Zeno Coupon] 24 907 BEs | B4
{Tern Coupon) 19873500 135 | USDISG84000 Federsbon Des Cssses 7202018
LS0 3000000 Province OF Albena 1ER019 (Zeno Coupon) mMeTaME 1
{Tern Coupon) TIEEIIET 273 | USDIISO00000 NGUS FundngLLC FRN 123012 35000807 207
WED 30400000  Province OF Ortano T8 UED 5000000  INGUS Fundng LLC FRN 220016 15000000 103
Zero Coupon) 30,387 Ta2 208 USD 33 ETA000  Keds Fundng LLC 12202014
LD 38,000 000 Teronba Dominion Bank FRN {Zera Coupon]) 33651 553 11
15277003 WHMEE  I5F | USOIN000000 Kebs Fundng LLC J600019
1T, 3444 11B1 {Zera Coupon] 20,880,047 142

Tt nobea on peges 37 o 42 rm s ndegral part of thess finanod statemoats
[34] BlackRock Global Investment Series
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Super Money Market Fund continued

Portfolio of Investments as at 31 January 2019

United States continued United States continuad

US0 25,000,000 L3 Fayede Assel Securmzabon USD 72000000  Redgefield Fundng Co LLC 1444
FVIHNE Fem Cavpan) MGETITE BB TR0 1S (e Coupon) 21872558 1 48
LIED 12700000 LMA S8 Arencas B2O001S 530750817 3529
Zero Cowpon) 12855 843 [E=11d it s A U el
LISD 25,000,000 Macouane Bark Limaed 127272019 Teanl Cornmescish Paper 1084872098 1247
{Zero Coupon) 24,879 372 VBB Total Transiemble Secumties and Money
S0 21 000,000 Macguane Bark Limited 22202018 Markost Instornends Admmibed 10 a0
{Zern Coupon] WPEIITE 142 | Oeficind Stock Exchange Lising o
UE0 11 200,000 Hlémmuml'lmiﬂ 565048 DCheciit m on dhnothesr Reguiated Markst 1ATESE 113 0018
el Coupon] 1 ¥ oTv TAMEES 113 100 T8
USE 42492000  Manhatian Asset Funding 23010 Zpcurties podfolo at markt vaise 1ATEESE 113 10038
(Zern Coupon) 4334 597 ar i
LSO 30 E0T.000 P Y Mol LLG Cxher Het Lishities [4122815)  (0.35)
147277009 (Zaew Soupan) wsnges 267 | ToalNecAssers[USDH 1Aream.1Ge: 00N
Sector Breakdown
as at 31 January 2019
Fnancasl BE 54
Gavemment LERL]
Seourites pordobn a1 masket value 10028
Ol Mt Linitnkes. [0 18]

10000

Tt nobes on peges 37 o 42 form s integral part of thess finanoil statemeats.
Annual Report and Audited Accounts  [38]
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Organisation

BlackRock Global Invesiment Series (the “Fund’) is a fonds
cormun de placement formed under the laws of the Grand
Duchy of Luxembourg. The Fund is set up under Part [l of the
law of 17 Decernber 2010 relating to undertakings for collective
investrnent as amended (the “2010 Law”). The Fund qualifies
as an alternative investment fund ("AIF7) in accordance with
Directive 2011/51/EU of the European Pardiament and of

the Council of 8 June 2011 on Altemnative investrnent Fund
Managers {"AIFMD) and the Luxembouwrg law of 12 July 2013
on aternative investment fund managers as amended (the
“2013 Law").

The Management Company is not the alternative investment
manager of the Fund. For the period frem 1 February 2018 to
16 January 2019, BlackRock Asset Management Schweiz AG
{the “Investment Manager”) had been appointed to perform
portfolio and risk management functions for the Fund, within
the meaning of the AIFMD. Effective 17 January 2018, to
comply with the requirements of the Money Market Funds
Regulation, the Management Company appointed BlackRock
Asszet Management Ireland Limited (the “AIFMT) as the
alternative investment ind manager. The AIFM will provide
and procure the provision of investment management
senices, incleding portfolio and risk management functions,
for the Fund. The AIFM is entifed to delegate its functions.
powers, discretions, duties and obligations, subject to AIFMD
requirements.

Az al 31 January 2019, the Fund offered unifs in frve porifolios,
Global Allocation Portfolio, Global Equity Income Portfolio,
Income Strategies Portfolio, Super Money Market Fund and
Wirld Income Portfolio (each a *Paortfolio™ and collectrvely the
“Paortfcios”). Each Paortfolio haz different investment objectives
and invests in different types of Imestments.

Each Portfolio is a separate pool of assets and is represented
by separate units of each Portfolio which are drvided into unat
classes as detailed on page 45.

The classes of units have equivalent rights in the Portfolios
bt carry different fostures and charging structures, which
are more fully described in the Fund's Prospecius,

Significant events during the year

+  Effective 17 January 2019, the Managemenl Cempany
appointed the AIFM inta its role a3 the Fund's alternstive
invesiment fund manager in compliance with the Money
Markel Funds Regulation.

¢ A new Prospeclus was issued on 17 January 2019,

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with ganerally accepted accounting principles in Luxembourg
and with the legal and regulatory requirements relating to the
preparation of the financial staterments as prescribed by the
Luxembourg authorities for Luxembourg investment companies
and include the following ssgnificant accounting poficies:

(2} Valuation of Investments and Other Assets

The Fund's investments and other assets are valued
as follows:

HNon-Meoney Market Portfolios

Term loans are not listed on any securities exchange, In
determining the Met Asset Value (WA, the Fund utilises
the valuations of term loans fumished by a pricing service
approved by the Board of Directors of the Management
Company. The pricing service typically values term loans
at the bid price when guotations are readily available.
Term loans for which quotations are not readily available
are valued at fair market value on a consistent basis as
determined by the pricing service using pricing matrices
to determine valuations. The procedures of the pricing
services and s evalualions are reviewed by the Invesiment
Adviser of the relevant Portfolio (the “Investment Adviser”)
under the general supervision of the Board of Directors of
the Management Company. The Board of Directors of the
Management Company has determined in good faith that
the use of a pricing service is a fair method of determining
the valuation of berm loans;

Ponfolio securties consisling of equities, bonds and other
debt instruments (other than short-term obligations bt
including Bsted issues) may be valued on the basis of
prices furnished by one or more pricing senvices which
determine prices for normal, institutional-size trading units
of such securities using market information, transactions
for comparable securities and vanous relationships
beteween securities that are generally recognised by
institutional traders;

Portfolio securities that are listed on stock exchanges or
traded on other regulated markets are valued at the last
knowen price an such exchanges or markets az ofthe close
of the business day immediately preceding the valuation
date with the exception of Global Equity Income Portfolio
for which securiies are valued at the valuation date the
last known price as of 4.00 pom. Lucembourg time (in
each case, the “Relevant Time"). If there are no such
sales of a particular security, the value of such securty
will be the last avadable bid price of the Relevant Time
of, in certain circumstances, such portfolio secunties are
valued at the [ast sale price on the exchange that is the
prirmary market for such securities, or the last quoted bid
price For those secunties for which the Oves-the-Counter
(OTC") market such as NASDAQ, is the primary market
for listed securities;

Investments in open-ended collective investment schemes
are valued on the basis of the last available net asset value
of the units of such collective investment scheme;

Fi<ad income securitios that are not listed on stock
exchanges or traded on other regulated markets are
valued at the last available bid price or yield equivalents

Annual Report and Audited Accounts  [3T)]
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

obtained Fom one or more dealers of pricing senices.
Securities traded in the OTC marke! are valued at the lag
avaiable bid price. In cases where securities are traded on
more than one exchange, the securities are valued on the
exchange designated by or under the direction of the Board
of Directors of the Management Company as the primary
market, Portfolio securities that are traded both in the OTC
miarket and on a stock exchange are valued accordng to
the broadest and most representative market;

*  Securifies and assels for which markel quotalions are nol
readily available are valued at fair value as determined
in good faith by or under the direction of the Board of
Directars of the Management Company.

As at 31 January 2019, the adusted fair value appliad to
certain securties andior dervatives are disclosed in the
table below:

-..; - .._.m-\... il Fﬂri __ll"‘iﬁ..
Inceena Strategies Portitio | wso | 931soes | 275

Please refer to the Portfolio of Invesiments section for furthes
datails of the secunities.

Super Money Market Fund

+  The Management Company has established procedures
designed to stabslise, to the extent reasonably possibie, the
Super Money Market Fund's price per unit as computed for
the purpose of sales and redemptions at one USD;

¢ The Portfolio's undertying secunties and money market
instruments are valued based upon their amorti sed
cost. This involves valuing an instrument at its cost and
thereafter assuming a constant amortisation to maturity
of any discount or premium, regardless of the impact
of Buctuating interest rates on the market value of the
instruments. While this methed provides cedainty in
valuation, it may result in perods during which value,
as determined by amorised cosl, is higher or lower than
the price the Super Money Market Fund would receive
ifit seid the instrument;

+  Holdings are periodically reviewed by or under the direction
of the Board of Directors of the Management Company
to determine whether a deviation exists between the MY
calculated using market values and that calculated on an
amorised cost basis. In the event it 15 determined that a
deviation exists. which may result in material délution or
other unfair results to investors or existing Unitholders, the
Management Company takes such cofmective action by or
under the drection of its Board of Directors as is reganded
as necessary and appropriate, incudng the sale of the
portfolio instruments prior to maturity to realise capital
gains or losses or to shorten average portfolio maturity,
withholding dividends, or establishing a NA\ per unit
by using available market values,

[38] BlackRock Global Investment Series

All Portfolios
*  Cash is valued at its nominal amount;

*  Liquid assets such as money market instruments are
valued at amortised cost basis;

*  Azsats which include, in particular, interest and dividends
receivable, receivable for investments sold and receivable
for Fund units subscribed are valued at nominal value;

*  Liabilities which include, in particular, payable for invesimenis
purchased payable for Fund units redeermed interest and
dividands payable are valued at neminal value.

(b} Realized gains and losses on Investments

Net realised gains and losses on sales of investments have
been determined on the basis of the average cost method.

(&) income/Expense from Investrments

The Fund takes credit for income from s investments on the
following basis:

interest income is accrued daily and includes the
amortisation on a straight-line basis of premiums and
accretion of discounts;

¢  bank interest is recognized on an accrual basis;

+  dividend income is accrued on the ex-dividend date and
is shown net of withholdng tax;

»  an interest rate differential {(1RD) is the difference in interast
rates between two similar interest bearing securities which
artsas from the currency hedging process e.g. ifthe 1 month
interest rate on USD is 0.25% and on AUD it is 1%, then
the implied IRD is 0.75%. Traders in the foreign exchange
market use IRD's when pricing forward exchange rates.
IRD's can be positve, nil of negative, Inclusion of IRD's
in dividends may constitute a payment from capital in some
jurlsdictions. IRD is recorded as miscellansous fees i the
Staternent of Operations and Changes in Net Assets.

(d} Financial Derivative Instruments

Dwring the year, the Fund has entered into a number of
forward foreign exchange transactions and ffures contracts,
Open futures contracts are valued at the fair market value to
cloze the contracts on the accounting date, Surpluses/deficits
arising from these and closed unsettied contracts are taken

to net unrealised appreciationf{depreciation) and are included
under aszets or liabiliies (as appropriate) in the Statement

of Met Assets. The net change in unrealized appreciation or
depreciation and the net realized gains or losses on setfemsant
or closing transactions of forward foreign exchange transactions
and fitures contracts are presented in the Statement of
Operations and Changes in Met Assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

During the year, the Fund has entered into swap agreements
o exchange the return generated by ona instrument for the
return generated by another imvestment, The Fund can write
credit default swaps ("CD3" and purchase COS. When the
Fund writes andfor purchases a CDS, a senes of premiums is
paid to or paid by the Fund, in retum for a payment contingent
on a credt event (predefined in the agreement}). The premiums
are included in the cost of COS. VWhere possible, swaps are
marked to market based upon daily prices obiained from third
party pricing agents and verified against the actual market
maker. Where such quotations are not available swaps are
priced based upon daily quotations from the market maker. In
both cases changes in guotations are recorded as net change
n unrealised appreciation or depreciation in the Statemeant of
Operations and Changes in Net Assets. Met realisad gains or
losses on matunty or termimation of the swaps and the interest
eamed in relation to the swaps are presented in the Staternent
of Operations and Changes in Net Assets.

Each Portfolic may sell call oplions and purchase put options
on stock indices to seek to hedge portfolio securities against
the impact of anticipated general price declines in equity
markels or specific induslry sectors thereof, Oplions on indices
are similar o options on securiies except that on exercise

of assignment, the parties to the contract pay or receive an
amount of cash equal to the difierence between the closing
value of the index and the exercize price of the option times
a specified multiple. The effectiveness of a hedge employing
stock index options will depend primarily on the degree of
caorrelation between movements in the value of the index
underkying the option and in the portion of the portfolio being
hedged. Among other factors, the degree of correlation with
respect to convertible securities will be affected by the degres
e which the market value of portfolio securities is attributable
b their cenversion value, The net change in unrealised
appreciation or depreciation and the net realised gains or
losses on expiration or closing transactions of options are
presented in the Statement of Operations and Changes in
Met Azsels.

{e) Foreign Exchange

The cost of investments in currencies other than the

currency of denomination of the respectve Portfolio has

been translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the time

of purchass. Market value of investments and other assets

in currencies other than the curmency of denomination of the
respective Portfolio have been translated at the exchange rate
prevailing at the Portfolios valuation point in Luxembourg as at
31 January 2019, The net change in unrealised appreciation or
depraciation and the net realised gains or losses on disposal
or setifernent of other assels or liabilities in cumencies other
than the currency of denomination of the respective Portfolio
are presented in the Statement of Operations and Changes

in Met Assets.

Income and expenses in currencies other than the curmency of
denomination of the respective Portfolio have been translated
at the rates of exchange prevailing on transaction date.

Different exchange rates are resulting from the pricing matrix
and different valuation points between the different BGIS
Pertfolios, In the below table, the prior day close exchange
rates are presented for Global Allocation Portfolio, Global
Equity Income Portfolio and World Income Portfolio, and the
4P CET exchange rates for Income Strategies Portfolio and
Super Money Market Fund, The fallowing exchange rates
were used to translate the investments and cther assets and
other liabdities for all Portfolios denominated in currencies
other than the base cumency of the respective Portficlio as at
31 January 2015

ALD 0727650 |
can 0.TE0342 0
CHF 1 .005379 101753
ik 0153760 0153055
EUR 1. 147500 5142550
GBF 1 310000 1 307000
HELD 0127447 | 01274564
IS 0274774 | 0 272978
ME 0074081 Qu0tans
Y 0009203 0009125
FRW 00002359 0 0D0s o5
M 0052500 Qo225
SER D 110887 0110055
S60_ 0743163 0 7386
TWE 0032550 0082522
ZAR 0075283 0073648

(fy Combined Financial Staterments

The Combined Financial Statements of the Fund are
expressed in USD and include the total of the financial
statements of the different Portfolios.

(g} Deferred Organisatonal Expenses

Dafarred of ganisational expenses are capitalised and are
amarised on a straight-line basis over & five year perniod,
Asg at 31 January 2019 all Portfolios had fully amortised
their deferred organizational expenses.

{h} Income Egualisation

Each Portfolio follows the accounting practice of egualization
to prevent the undistributed income per unit from fluctuating
solely by reason of subscriptions and redemptions of its
unis, This is accomplished by maintaining an equalisation
account for the relevant Portfolio, The equalisation account

is credited with that portion of the proceeds of subscribed
units representing the net undistributed income per unit of
those units, and is debited with that portion of any redemption
payment representing net undistributed income per unit of
the redesmed units. A portion of the dividends declared by

Annual Report and Audited Accounts  [38]
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

a Portfolio may consist of amounts previously credited to

the equalization acceunt, The yield reponted to investors will
include amounts paid from net income as well as any amount
paid from the egualisation account.

The lncome Equalisation is included in the Movements
in unit capital in the Statement of Operations and Changes
in Met Assets.

) Unfunded loans represent the remaining obligation
of the Fund to the bomrower,

Az at 31 January 2018, the Income Strategies Portfolio had
an unfunded lcan of ISD 128 628 disclosed under “Payable
for unfunded loan™ in the Statement of Met Assets.

i m‘lw‘ﬂ Company and Investment Advisers
{a} Management Company

BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A IS the
Management Company ofthe Fund. Pursuant to the
Management Regulations, the Management Company has
agreed to manage the Fund's Portfolios for the exclusive
account of the relevant Unitholders. The Depositary and
such other agents as appropriate, induding Distributors of
the Fund's Units in and oulside Japan are appointed by
the Managament Company. The Management Company
has delegated the appointment of Distributers to the
Principal Distributor.

BlackRock Fund Management Company 5.4 is a wholly
ownid subsidiary within the BlackRock Group and is
regudated by the Commission de Surveiiance du Secteur
Financier ("CSSFT).

{b) AIFM

The Management Company has appeinted BlackRock Asset
Management ireland Limited as the AIFM to provide and
procure the provizion of investment management services,
imcluding portfolio and n=k management functions, for the
Fund wathin the meaning of the AIFMD. The AIFM iz entiied
to delegate its funclions, powers, discrebons, duties and
obligations, subject to AIFMD requirements.

The AIFM is a wholly owned subsidiary within the BlackRock
Group and is authonsed by the Central Bank of Ireland.

The AIFM is paid ocut of the management fee due to the
Management Company, as outlined in Mote 4.

{c} Investment Advisers
Subgect to the overall responsibility of the AIFM, each of the

Pomtfalios receives investment advisory senvices From the
Investment Advisers:

[#0] BlackRock Global Investment Series

| BlackRiock Japan Co , Lid

BlackRock Irmrastnment

Management (L) Lamitad

BlackRock Financsl

Managemant, Inc

| Ela-:hR_r;:I Financial
Marageme ], Ind

| BlackRock Japan Co Lid

Global Alocation Partfolio
Glgbal E-.|LF‘.y' Incoma Poriolio

Incoma Strategess Podtiolo

Super Money Markel Fund

Wedld Incoma Podlohs

The Investrment Advisess form part of the BlackRock Graup.

The Investment Advisers are each paid out of the management
fee due to the Management Company, as outlined in Mote 4.

4. Management and Distribution Fees
{a} Management fees

During the year, the Fund paid management fees to the
Management Compary.

The level of management fee varies from 0.45% to 0.75% per
annum of the NAY, with the exception of Class F units, which
do not pay a management fee bul rather a fee to the Invesimenl
Advizer or affiliates under a separate agreement. The level of
management fee vares according to which Paortfolio and unit
class the investor buys. These fees accrue dadly, are based

oni the N&Y of the relevant Portfolio and are paid monthly.

The Fund's AIFM and Investment Adviser fees are bome by the
Management Company and paid through the management fee.

(b} Distribution fees

The Management Company has also entered info a Distribution
Agreement with BlackRock Investment Managemeant {LIK)
Limited {the “Principal Distributor™). The Principal Distributor
may conchude contraciual arrangements with cerlain Distrbulors
for the distnbutien of units cutside the U_S. such as the
Japanese Distributors (as disclosed on pages 3 to 4).

The level of distribution fee varies from 0.25% to 1.00% per
annum, of the MNAY, with the exception of Classes AD units,

D wnits, F units, Institubional | units, which do not pay &
distribution fee. The level of distribution fee varies according

to which Portfiolio and unit clazs the investor buys. These fees
accrue daily, are based on the MAY of the relevant Portfolio and

are paid quartiery.

The management and distnbution fees per unit class for
each Portfolio are disclesed in detail in the Fund's Prospectus.

A fee waiver on management fees, distribution fees was in

place on Super Money Market Fund's Commeon, Current and
Institutional | units.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

5, Coordination Fees

The Management Company has entered into an agreement
with Black Reck Operations (Luxembourg) 5.4 rl, "BROL")
pursuant to which BROL, under the direction of the Board

of Diractors of the Management Company, provides certain
corporate and administrative coordination services on behalf
of the Fund.

The Coordnation foe rate i 0.025% of the svesage daily
&y of the Fund (excluding Class F units), per annum.

A fee waiver on coordination fees was in place on Super
Maney Markel Fund’s Common, Current and Institutional | units,

6. Administration Fees

The Management Company has appainted State Streat
Bank Luxembourg S.C.A, 49, avenue JF Kennedy,
L-1855 Luxembourg, as the Fund's Administrative Agent
in Luxembourg to assist the Management Company at its
principal office in Luxembourg with general administrative
tasks pursuant to the Administration Agreement, against
charging usual fees for these services.

7. Audit Fees
Detailed balow are the fees paid lo Delotte Audt Sa vl for
the year ended 31 January 2019,

M January 218
EUR
Audt and audit relabed services (excluding VAT

MOn- it Senvices -

8. Depositary Fees

The Management Company has entered into the Depositany
Agreament with the Depositary, State Street Bank
Luxembourg S5.C_A. This agreement was amended effectve 17
January 2019 in Ene with the appointment of the AIFM.

The Depositary Agreement provides that all securities and
cash of the Fund, other than cash held in trading accounts

or held in any operating accounts for expenses or dividend
disbursement accounts {which may be maintained at other
banks), are to be held by or to the order of the Depositary
provided that the Management Company may place cash in
overnight call accounts or on term deposit with other banks
approved by the Depositary, who shall continue to supervise
such funds. The Depositary is responsible for the collection
of prncipal and income on, and the payment for and collection
of proceeds of secunties bought and scid for the Fund. In line
with the compliance of the AIFM and the Fund's compliance
with AIFMD, the Depositary's role pursuant to AIFMD
enhances Unitholder protection and includes the responsibility
o safekoap the assets of the Fund and hold in custody all
financial instruments, cash and other assets of the Fund (the
“Safekeeping Function”).

The Depositary charges the Fund fees for these services in
accordance with its usual rates expressed as a fraction of

a percentage per annum of the net assets of the Fund. The
Depesitary may appint cne or more comespondent banks, and
it is expected that the Depositary retains a correspondent bank

in the United States, whose fees shall be borne by the Fund.
Az part of its Safekeepng function, the Depositary is liable to
the Fund for the loss of financial instruments which are held
in custody. This enhanced role of the Depositary leads to an
increase in depositary fees by up to 0.0062%, payable by
the Fund,

8. Transactions with Connected Parties

The ultimate holding company of the Management
Company, the Principal Distributor, the AIFM, the Investment
Manager and the Investrnent Advisers iz BlackRock, Inc.,

a company incorporated in Deleware, USA. PMC Financial
Services Group Inc. is a substantial shareholder in BlackRock,
Inc. When arranging transactions in securities for the Fund,
companies in the PNC Group may have provided securities
brokerage, foreign exchange, banking and other services,

or may have acted as prnncipal, on their usual terms and
may have benefted therefrom. Commissions have been paid
to brokers and agents in accordance with the relevant market
practice and the benefit of any bulk or other commission
discounts or cash commissions rebates provided by brokers
or agents have been passed on to the Fund. The services
of PNC Group companies could have been used by the
Investment Advisers where it was considered appropriate

to do 50 provided that their commissions and other berms of
business are generally comparable with those available from
unassociated brokers and agents in the markels concemad,
and this is consistent with the above palicy of cbtaining best
net resulis.

During the year there have been no significant tranzactions
wihich were outside the ardinary course of business or which
were not on normal commercial terms.

10, Taxation

Under present Luxembourg lenw and practice, the Fund is

not liable to any Luxembourg ordinary income or capital

gains tax, nor are dividends paid by the Fund subject to any
Luxembourg withholdng tax. However, the Fund is subject to
a subscription tax (“taxe d abonnement™) of 0.05% per annum
levied on the MAV of the Fund at the last day of each calendar
quarter, in accordance with the 2010 Law, except in respect

of Super Money Market Fund as well as in respect of the
Portfolios or unit classes reserved for institutional investors
within the meaning of Article 174 of the 2010 Law, on which

a reduced tax of 0.01% per annum is levied, For the year
ended 31 January 2019, the Global Allocation Portfolio and
World Inceme Portfalio have not paid Luzembourg taxes, as no
subscription tax is paid on the assets held by the Fund in other
undertakings for collective investment already subject to that
tax in Luxembouwrg,

Under applicable foreign tax laws, withholding taxes may be
imposed on interes!, dividends and capital gains at various rates.

11. Dividends

Super Money Market Fund — The net income {i.e., accrued
interest income net of accrued expenses) is declaredas a
dividend on each valuation date on all units outstanding on
that day to the Unitholders of record immediately pnor to the

Annual Report and Audited Accounts  [d41]
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

daily determination of MAW per unit, provided always that units
shall be entiled to a dvidend only from the day on which their
subscription is settled prior to 12 noon Luxembeurg time and
that units redeemed shall not be entitled to receive the daily
dividend declared on the settiement day of their redemption.

The net income of the relevant other Potfolios consists of

(i) interest accrued, discount eamed (including both original
issue and market discount) or cther income earned, (5) less
the estimaled expenses of the Portfolio (including managemen
feas). In respect of each dividend declared, the Board of
Directors of the Management Company may determine

if, and to what extent, such dividend is to be paid out of
wndistmbuted net investment income, realised and unrealised
capital gains, respectively increased or dacreased by net
equalisation credits or debits.

12. Credit Facility

A= at 31 Janwary 2019, Income Strategies Portfolio was
enlifled to a credi facility of USD 85,000,000 from Siale Sireel
Bank and Trust Cormpany. As at 31 January 2015, a loan of
USD 0 was drawn down (2018: LLSD 26,000,000). A loan
commitment fee is charged on a daily basis in relation to this
credit Facilty which is included in the Staterment of Operations
and Changes in Met Assets. The loan commitment fae consists
of 0.15% charged on the unused pertion of the credit facility
and the FED or LIBOR rate (depanding on which is higher)
+0.20% margin spread on the used portion of the credd facility,

13. Security Pledged or Given in Collateral
Az at 31 January 2019, no securiies have bean given
or received as guarantes.

14. Financial Derivative Instruments and EMclent
Portfollo Management Techniques

Each of the Portfolios may use demvabives to hedge
market and currency risk, and for the purposes of efficient
portfolio management.

The use of dervalives may sxpose the Porfolios 1o a higher
degrea of risk. In pamicular, denvative contracts can be
highly volatile, and the amount ofinitial margin is generally
smadl relative to the size of the contract so that ransactions
are geared, A relatively small market movement may have
a potentialy larger impact on derivatives than on standard
bonds or equities.

See further detailz in the specific Portfolio of Investments.

15. Transaction costs

In crder to achieve its investment objective, a Portfiolio will incur
transactions costs in relation to trading activity on its Portfolio
of imvvestrents. Disclosed in the table below are separately
idantifiable transaction costs incurred by each Portfolio for the
vear ended 31 January 2019. These include commission costs,
settiement fees, broker fees and depositary faes.

[42] BlackRock Global Investment Series

Elobal Alocation Portiolio sD

Global Equety Incoméa Poatiolio LsD 2p.N17

Income Strateges Poriolio LSD 3218

Super Monay Market Fund 1 uso -

Wodld Income Portiols 1 uso =
16, Amounts due fromito Brokers.

The Portfolios trade derivatives with a range of counterparties.
The counterparties to forward foreign exchange transactions
and swap contracts are shown in the Portfolio of Investments,

Cash collateral is paid or received on swaps o cover any
axposure by the counterparty to the Fund or by the Fund to
the counterparty. Due fromto Brokers on the Staternent of Met
Aszels consists of cash collateral and margin paidireceed
from the Fund's clearing brokers and vanous counterparties.

17. Subsequent events

Effective 25 February 2018, Graham Bamping was
appointed as Chairman of the Board of the Directors of the
Management Comparny.

18. Legal proceedings
In May 2015, the Motors Liquidaton Company Avoidance
Action Trust, as the Trust Administrator and Trustee of the
General Motors bankruptcy estate, began serving complaints
on former holders of certain General Motors debt (the “Debt"),
in the United States Bankmuptcy Court for the Southern District
of Mew York. The former heolders of the Debt, which are
defendants in the proceading, include the BlackRock Global
Investment Series = Income Strategees Portfolio ("1SP7. In
addition to ISP, the lawsuit also names over five hundred other
institutional investors as defendants, including a numbser of
BlackRock fnds, The defendants recetved full repayment

of the Debt on the understanding that it was fully secured

at the time of repayment. The plaintifs contend that ISP and
other defendants were not secured creditors at the time of

the 2009 payments and therefore not entitied to the payments
in full. The plaintiffs are seeking an order that |SP and cther
defendants retum proceeds received in 2008 in full payment
of the principal and interest en the Debt. ISP cannot predict the
outcome of the lawsuit, or the effect. if any, on I5P's net asset
value. As such, no Babdity for litigation related to this matter is
reflected in the financial statements.
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Unit Classes (Unaudited)

Unit Classes In lssue
Az at 31 January 2012, the Fund offers the fellowing undl classes,

A Class destnbuding wrst m ALID

A Class desinbuting unit in EUR

A Class destributing undd i LSD

A Class deinbating urt S0 hedged
A Class non-destribuling wnit in AUD
A Clgss non-disinbubing wrl m JPY
A Clags non=distribuling unit in LSD

AD Class dsinbuteng unif in USD

B Class disinbuting und in LSD

C Class dsinbuting und in USD

Common distnbuting wnit in USD

Curard detributing und in USD

F Ciags destributing ure in USD

Irshfutinal | disinbuging unit in LIED

o Clires destnbading und in USD
1 weadtably in wbbonsd meslors

Unit Classes Launched
There were no unit classes launched during the period.

Annual Report and Audited Accounts  [45]
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2018 31

2018 31
1,418,075,013 155,080, 683

2(a) 1,418,075,013 155,080, 683
2(a) 15,874 1,736
2(a) 601,595 65,790
59,134 6,467

1,418,751,616 155,154,677

2(a) 29,910,500 3,271,012
2(a) 1,350,902 147,735
4,5,6,7,8 657,497 71,904
31,918,899 3,490,651

1,386,832,717 151,664,026

42
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2018 31

2018 31 2017 31 2016 31

( ) C ) ( ) «C ) ( ) « )
1,386,832,717 151,664,026 1,337,664,002 146,286,935 1,322,726,529 144,653,373

( ) ) ( ) ) ( ) )
1.00 109 1.00 109 1.00 109
1.00 109 1.00 109 1.00 109
1.00 109 1.00 109 1.00 109

37 42
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2018 31
1,337,664,002 146,286,935
2(c) 7,712,910 843,484
2(c) 10,228,079 1,118,543
17,940,989 1,962,027
6,514,234 712,397
2,119,623 231,802
173,449 18,968
912 100
23,104 2,527
151,406 16,558
10 138,695 15,168
338,350 37,002
46,512 5,087
127,627 13,957
3,646 399
9,637,558 1,053,963
3,137,450 343,112
6,500,108 710,852
11,440,881 1,251,175
2(a),2(b) 16,315 1,784
2(a),2(b) (9,458) (1,034)
6,857 750
11,447,738 1,251,925
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1,457,016,381 159,339,311
(1,407,847,667) (153,962,221)
49,168,714 5,377,001

11 (11,447,737) (1,251,925)
1,386,832,717 151,664,026
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2018 31
352,855 2,989 — 355,844
802,277,726 945,457,833 831,548,152 916,187,407
535,033,421 511,557,600 576,301,555 470,289,466

37

42
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2018 31

fonds commun de
2010 12 17 2010
2011
EU 2011/61
2013 12
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2018 31

14,831,039 3.85
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2018 31

2018 31

0.811260

1.241151

1.411700

0.762835
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2018 31

0.810300

0.814133

1.073710

0.167431

1.246050

1.417599

0.127871

0.293470

0.015722

0.009184

0.000936

0.053701

0.127532

0.764497

0.034311

0.084361

(f

10 13 BlackRock Global Investment Series Combined

(9

2018 31

(h
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@G
2018 31 98,742

Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier

0.45 0.75

0.25 1.00
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0.025

1855
49 49, avenue J-F Kennedy, L-1855 Luxembourg

2018 31

2018 31

63,500
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10
2010 taxe d"abonnement
0.05
2010 174
0.01 2018 31
11
12
()
(i)
12
2018 31
65,000,000 2018 28
2018 31 26,000,000 2017 25,000,000

0.15 FED LIBOR 0.90
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15

16

17

2018

31

2018 31
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831

18

19

2015

500

2009

2009
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2018 31
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Statement of Net Assets
as at 31 January 2018

Unnsalised apprecal onldepracalion) BAETG BEY T4.507HES 25 Tr0.az)
Securies pordo’o ol mar valos THaj 2.820.544,405 470,180,858 128,142,408
Cazh ol banik 23 2373338 - 218253
Iniboresl i ividemdy reewivabla Ma} L5617 - 138,388
Reetonbis for Irairments gl 2 14,630, 187 2ET0ER | F RE
Mecatnbiy for Fond unda suicted 20a] SETT 2B 402 9.8
Swapd B DAk vl 20 T8 TaL - -
Purehaned optons ol maral vaiue i ard e =
Othed Bt B3 53, £57 gag 29
Teesl wianta 448,705,500 ATSE1EEIE 734,768,638
Llsisties
Cath ownd o) ool b 1] B 171,919 -
Cutancing loan 12 28,000,000 H =
Paryabia kor anfunced loar, H 54,722 = =
Ininraid and dividends payabes Ha) Tor = =
Pyt kor Invasimants Hnl £3 58 BT 1405578 3 807
Pyt k¢ Fund ins edesmad Hal 358 w7 208 115 -
Dividn s payabia Ha 124 823 - -
Mt ynrealised dearucialion on i
Open, borward fareigh axchange vansacdions Ei] waeE - -
Epees B Gl Fakiien 456,78 2027 7 1212548 AT
Tedal liabiiities LLELE 8038459 245038
Tolal nal saeeis 1M 5508T LI RLFR]] 1H.50.00

Approved on behalf of the Board of Directors of the Managemant Comparny

NZ LY

Direcior

oale 2 5 MAY 2018

Tum st 6% 5o 37 46 42 by e ivagrad paen of ran Poanciel B sesees.
[16]  BlackRock Global investmant Sarfas
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Statement of Net Assets
as at 31 January 2018 continued

Asiat
Ssturites portiols 3t oo 438 024 61 1A18075,013 35,70 756
Unreaissed apprenabonTdepmonnon) (18,507 486) - 100,375
Securites portfolio al ket value Ha) 417317285 1.418,075,0M3 35805031
Cagh of Dank Ay = 15,674 T3
Interest and deidends recervable Ha) o 183 86T E01,585 103, 16T
Fecenable for e smerts okl Ha) 11689050 - -
Recenable for Fund writs subscnbed Ha) 1068 901 = e
Secaps 3t kel vakos iy 78,783 - -
Purchaved opbons at mariet vaiue Xy N4 - -
Oxhesr aetets 312,508 59013 12,584
Taesl a44e8 434,859,128 1418751 616 5995302
Liabllicies
Cash owend 10 bank ap 7,562,743 - -
Cuastandang Moan 12 26, 000000 = -
Farynide for undfunded loan 20 68,742 - -
Interest o deadends ppable Haj a7 - -
Parpable for investments purchase d Hay 1023401 Fasn0.500 =
Paryable for Fund units redesmed Haj 1,766 20 - -
Drendernds puryable Ty - 1,250,802 T3EN
et unreakstd depreciation on

Open forward forsign exchange Iransachong: Hdy 30,8253 - -
ACorued expenses and other kabddies 45878 TeE 8T BET 407 160 24
Tatal liakilities AT TT1.250 ERRalE- ] THIE
Totsl Ast 381 e 366 BATETE 1388832717 ETET 108

Thos mackieh oms piagirs 37 B A2 i o bl et o i
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Three Year Summary of Net Asset Values
as at 31 January 2018

Global Allecation Portfolle

Total miwt ass ets

Nat gget value par
& Chyss rdrietinstri Boting wrsl
A Chass. non-tinbutng urst ALD
i Ciwts ot buing urt: JFY

Global Equity Income Portfolio
Total net assets
Het eset vakue per

A, Tl Srsinbutng und

F Class chsinbubng uné

Income Strategles Pertfollo
Total ret assats
Mat atiet valus par
A Class diatrbutng und
& Clags dsrbuting ung SG0 hedged
A0 Class destribusing wnt
B Class dmrbuting U
£ Class digtnbuting unit
J Class arstibuteg ung

Super Money Market Fund

Total met 255 ets

Hst meset vahme ger
Cormmon denbuing urd
Current d2nbuting urd:
Ensshn nod | it und

World Income Portfello
Total net ass ets
Naf gsset value par
A Class distnbuting ung
& Chyss dratrbuting unk AL
A Chass distrbuting ung EUR

415,862,159 60505 S5

15.70 1360 1238
1805 15 58 1404
11348 10018 -

AR 823 008 141 47250 B8R 108

1543 1300 1216
745 14,58 13,42

386,287 BT 413,537 543 ELER =k ]

512 584 &N
10.69 1080 .16
are 863 8T
573 L1 50
1024 10.18 axn

1386822717 1,337 £64,002 1222726529

1.00 100 1 00
100 100 100
1.00 180 100

HTE1, 508 A5504 528 1267 508

1118 ik ] 10 &8
11.05 1088 1085
1007 0.2 a6

b5B B |BEB B |B3BEGBHE B (BE B [v5B B

Thish it o pag 37 1 A2 i v oy el et 5 Wi
[12] BlackRock Global Investment Seres
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Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
for the year ended 31 January 2018

Mat 3354t 3 the beginning of the year 2.284,839880 356,660,236 41 ATIETD
Income
Bank repnes ey T, I 54l 1358
Bond and ioan mteres Heh 34 3654 85 - -
Crvaens (req of wahiidng i) 2ch 5538412 - 41787
Inderest rabe o Merenhal He) 31 566 = =
X e 170854 78 654 =
Tatal incoma AT B34 216 25 0TS 4181303
Expenties
Managemant fees 4 12,180 280 2,708 38 i 0
Dustrite tiin dups 4 TAM 53 2.7 361 204084
Adminesiraton lees ] 455354 - 36,335
it g s 7 4588 = T
Legal fews 1435 5 17852 3438
Printing and other reporting fees 69,135 = -
St ST o Tas 1 2887 - e
Coordnafon fees & 852 50 ai.ae 12,254
Cusiody fees B 47 B85 = &7 77
Transer agent fees 130,755 Erm 513
Lixan comrmtment fees 12 421062 = -
M elyndout fees 30 408 - 208
Totsl sxpantes bafore reim bursemen 22230243 G568 182 T20.906
Reenbursement of expenses 4 3,137 450 - -
Total sxpenses after relmbursement 10,082 e 5550 R T8
Met investment incoma|deficit) 26,84 1453 B.263,%07) JAE03908
Fealisad Gh 6 |Ferments Iah ) 57.682,312 21,745 688 14 807,746
Realised {loss] on Invesiments Hapdn) (25,580 807) (3.148. 293 [ EINE
Mt reales el Gandloss) on
Fubems Contracts i ] [5 sy ix =
Fonssgn cumendies and forsard Tonsgn echangs iransactions Ty Heh (5. 200,711} (7a2,158) (1,858 415)
Ol CONTacE: ) (5084} - -
Sevap trafsachore )y [3074) - -
Mt realised gainifioss) for the year 26,806 755 18,308 280 M A10.318
Change i unnealiosd Apphecalnn of | ivemmenis 50,585,227 4E,146, 755 .70, 781
Change i unnealised (deprecabon] on imvesments 1ETT 895 551 3 e840
Het changs in unrealised appreci ationd deprecation ] on
Foregn cumenties and forsard Tonsgn echangs tramsactons Hd) He) 53,964 A0 4042
Swap ransactions ad) (5542 - -
Diptione. COntracts: Hdy (B2 - -
Met change in Hved appreciationi{deprecistion) for the year 70,330 255 48312 TTH A2 B 534
Irrea s (Detrease) in net assets a5 a result of operations 126,068,778 maran o7
Mlavemarts in unin capital
Met recepts: 25 & resul of issue of ungs | BEY 297 TR 1ZBETATT kel k]
Het prymends 352 result of repurchase of units. (LTET.738 20) {138, 203,155) [75.830,861)
Iresrea s ol [Ces reane) bn vt axsets a5 & result of movessents in share capital {20,508, 161) 3354 022 (3 0 )
Deendierics daciansd n (38843 5 15) = [A834843)
Mt nasets ot the end of the year 2,360,556 279 419,662,969 1M A3 00
T il dons g 37 B A i iy el et S i d
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Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
for the year ended 31 January 2018 continued

Het assets at the beginning of the year 413,537 ST 1,37 554 0elr2 A5 504 520
Imcome
Bk st ey 47 TrzAat0 -
Bond and loan ndem g Aeh 24,138,111 0.xmon -
Dredends (net of vathinaidng i ey 1541 - 1,355 524
Infanesl rane iferents He) - - 31,586
e income - = =
Total incoma 24,138,258 AT 840 568 1,288 450
Expanses
Management fee s i 2434248 B514.204 191887
Crsaritngon fees 4 1081535 FRLE L 280,550
Admanestraton fees -] 182,187 173 440 63,783
Auditens ) 15853 912 1058
Legal fess 57300 300 £18098
Prinbing and other reporing fees 97056 151 406 19673
S scnphon b 1] 21,285 128 585 =
Coordanaton fees 5 1 427 T3 3508
Cuestodyy fees ] 104 48 4512 F0587
Traevelis sgant fees war 127827 |29
Loan commitment fees 12 A1 0k = =
Miscelane-ous fees LLE 3540 x
Total sxp baffore redmb SETAEZY BUEIT 558 B 04T
Feimbursement of expenzes 4 - 33T 450 -
Tatsl expentes fer reimbunemant SET4E2 6500108 2347
Mt investm ent incomedt{defialt) 0453 A8 1144001 TERAT
Realised gan on Investments Hayah) 20 2 0 15315 304 304
Realisad {logs] on Irvesimens Ty {21,553,158) [2458) (176,683
Mt redega greind(ioss ) o
Futuee s Contracts Hdy [5.805) - -
Foresgn cumenoies and forsand fongsgen exchangs irensactons e (45 TR ECH - (BT BB
Dpfions contracts ) [S5)B) - -
Seeap ransachors Hd) [3074) - -
Mt Feslided gaballlosi) fes thi yaar {2.368 254) BAET S0 295,
Change in unfealised appreciabon on Investments qﬂ_m = M1—
Changs i unreshond (SprpcaBon) o meaments V2,584 528 - 2341,
it ehangs @ e app W deprecsation] on
Foresgn cumenoes and forvard fonegn exchangs tarsactons Hdyde) Ry - -
Shevd rANSAC00 ek ) 5.582) - =
Opfons contratts ) (928 - -
et ¢hangs in unsasived apprecistisndepresi vt en) for tha year 8,481 550 - 2E41 54
e Pea el [Dhs Pl ) i ot BR0RE A6 B rediult of sparations D46TT 04 11447738 2 540 247
Mevements in unit capital
et Fecepls &5 & resll of issue of unes 57,561 058 1457 e T43,241
Mt payments 325 resil of mpuichase of uls (5183 624) | (1407 BT EET) {12 470602)
I reas el {Diacreada) in et aseets 28 3 reduht of movemants in share capital {27 822 568) 49.163.714 (1HLTET 381
DOnadends declaned 1 (33,804 ,133) (11447 T3T) (856 802)
Met assets at the end of the year 36087 BTG 13081217 ETE 108
T il dons g 37 B A i iy el et S i d
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Statement of Changes in Units Outstanding

for the year ended 31 January 2018

Global Allocation Portfalic

A Class nonedistrbuting ueit 138718 5.080,755 7.A4E2,208 18,895 263
A Class non-disrbuting Lt AUD 5160 85 1569151 1,735 999 BOZa0ET
& Clats non-distrbuting urt JFY BATS AN F2726. 744 5,380 BAT T3 537 460
Global Equity Income Portfolio

A Class detritating ung CRITE: ] 1,004,102 1863573 3355450
F Clags distributing unt 5,858 000 1,776,145 30 BN 4570524
Income Strategles Portfollo

A Clags distributing unt BITEBAT 156,320 2066 087 B.A85 08
AClass dstributng und 560 hedged VILETT - M0 5 54
A0 Clags i strbuting L KLEH Y] 567 855 0407 B34.300
B Class dritnbitmng urd o648 7 4,000 21310 BATATT
€ Olags dismboting uni 116,548 17,876 8,180 3874
o Class dsnbutng und .35, Baga. T 12,247,100 §r.08.131
Super Money Market Fund

Commnan desirbunirg Ui 52 655 2889 - 55 P
Current degnbuting urit W7 45457 833 231 540,152 BB a7 407
Ineskaysaneyl | gimributing, ursd 503340 511,557 600 STE.301 555 AT0.IGE400
‘World income Portfelle

AClags distributing und 1,385,338 55280 Tan? 1 BEG 488
AClass detntnteg unt ALD T0E3EF2 10,545 418,040 160812
A Clarss dsiibutng unt EUR 290,061 139 3652 Jra517

T ikt o pingir 37 1 A2 i o el et o0 B rnrninisd i idwemaviti
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Notes to Financial Statements

1. Organisation
BlackRock Global Investment Senies (the “Fund”) is a fonds
commun de placement formed under the laws of the Grand
Duchy of Luxembourg. The Fund is set up under Part Il of the
law of 17 December 2010 relating to undertakings for collective
investment as amended (the “2010 Law”). The Fund gualifies
asz an alternative investrment fund ("AIF") in accordance with
Directive 2011/81/EU of the European Parliarnent and of

the Council of 8 June 2011 on Alternative Investment Fund
Managers ("AIFMD) and the Luxembourg faw of 12 July 2013
on altemative investment fund managers as amended (the
2013 Law’).

The Management Company iz not the alternative investment
fund managar (AIFM) of the Fund and has appointed
BlackRock Asset Management Schweiz AG (the “Investrent
Manager’} to perform portfolio and risk management functions
for the Fund within the meaning of the AIFMD. Currentty, the
Imvestment Manager iz not an authorised AIFM.

Az at 31 January 2018, the Fund offered units in five portfdlios,
Global Allocation Portfolio, Global Equity Income Portfolio,
Income Sirategies Portfolio, Super Money Market Fund and
Warld Income Pertfobo (each a “Portfolio” and collectively the
“Portfolios™). Each Portfolio has dfferent investment obiectives
and imvesis in different types of iransferable securities or markets.

Each Portfidlio is a separate pool of assets and is represented
by separate units of sach Portfolio which are divided inta unit
classes as detailed in Appendx |.

The classes of units have equivalent rights in the Portfolios
but carry different features and charging structures, which are
mare fulty described in the Fund's Prospectus.

Significant events during the year
A new prospecius to the Fund was issued on B December 2017.

2. Sumnmary of Significant Accounting Policies
The financial staternents have been pregared in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles in Luxembourg
and with the legal and reguistory requirernents refating to the
preparation of the financial statements as prescribed by the
Luxembourg authorties for Luxembeourg imvestment companies
and include the folowing significant acceunting policies:

(@) Valuation of Investrents and Other Azsels

The Fund's investrments and other assels are valued
as follows:

Mon-Maoney Market Portfolios

v Term loans are not ksted on any securities exchange. In
determining the Met Azzet Value ("NAVT), the Fund ublises
the valuations of term loans furnished by a pricing service
approved by the Board of Directors of the Management

EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Company. The pricing service typically values term loans
at the bid price when quotations are readily available,
Term loans for which quotations are not readily available
arg valued at fair market value on a consistent basis as
deterrmined by the pricing service using pricing matrices
to determane valuations. The procedures of the pricing
services and its evaluations are reviewed by the Investment
Adviser of the redevant Portfolio (the “Investment Adviser)
under the general supervision of the Board of Directors of
the Management Company. The Board of Directors of the
Management Company has deterrmined in good faith that
the use of B pricing service is a fair method of determining
the valuation of term loans:

Portfolio secunties consisting of equaties, bonds and othar
debt instruments (other than short-term cbligations but
including ksted issues) may be valued on the basis of
prices furnished by one ar more pricing senvices which
deterrmine prices for normal, institutional-size trading units
of such securties using market information, transactions
for comparable securities and vanous relationships
between secunbes that are generally recognised by
instituttonal traders,

Portfolio secunties that are listed on stock exchanges or
traded on other regulated markets are valued at the last
known price on such exchanges o markels as of the clote
of the business day immedately preceding the valuation
date with the exception of Global Equity Incorna Partlolia
for which securities are valued at the valuation date the
last known price as of 4,00 p.m. Liscenibourg ime (n
each case, the “Relevant Time"). If there are no such
sales of a paticular security. the value of such security
will be the tast available bid price of the Redevant Time
or, in certain croumstances, such portfolio secunbes are
valped at the last sale price on the exchange that is the
prirmary market for such securiies. or the last quoted bid
price for those securities for which the Over-the-Counter
{"OTC") market such as NASDAQ., is the primary market
for listed securities;

Investments in cpen-ended collective investment schemes
are valued on the basiz of the last available net asset value
of the units of such collective investment scheme;

Fixed income securities that are not listed on stock
exchanges of raded on other regulated markels are
valued at the last available bid price or yield equivalents
cbtained from one or more dealers or pricing services.
Securiies fraded in the OTC market are valued at the last
available bed price. In cases where secunties are traded on
mare than one exchange, the securities are valued on the
exchange designated by or under the direction of the Board
of Directors of the Management Company as the primary
market. Portfolio securities that are traded both in the OTC
market and on a stock exchange are valued according to
the broadest and mest representative market;

Annual Report and Audited Accounts  [37]
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Notes to Financial Statements continued

¢ Securities and assets for which market quotations are not
roadily available are valued &t falr value as determined in
good fith by or under the direction of the Board
of Directors of the Management Company.

A5 at 31 January 2018, such fair valuation adjustment was
applied as per table below:

Iy ST

Super Money Market Fund

¢ The Management Company has established procedures
designed to slabdize, to the extent reasonably possible, the
Super Money Market Fund's price per unit as computed for
the purpose of sales and redemptions &t one USD;

¢ The Portfolic’s underlying securities and money market
instruments are valued based upon their amortised
cost, This involves valuing an instrument at its cost and
thereafter assuming a constant amartization to maturity
of any discount or premium, regardless of the impact
of luctuating mterest rates on the market value of the
instruments, While this method provides certalrty in
valuation, it rmay result in pericds during which value, as
determined by amortised cost, is higher or lower than the
price the Super Money Market Fund would receive if it sold
the instrument:

¢ Holdngs are periodically reviewed by or under the direction
of the Board of Directors of the Management Company
to determine whether a deviation exists between the NAY
calculated using market values and that calculated on an
amartised cost basis. In the event it is determined that a
deviation exists, which may result in material diubion or
other unfair results o investors o existing Unitholders, the
Management Company takes such cormective action by or
under the direction of its Board of Directors as is regarded
@5 necessary and approprigte, including the sale of the
portfolio instruments prior to maturity to realise capital
gains or losses or to shorten average portfolio matunty,
withhaldng dividends, or establishing a NAV per Linit by
using available market values.

All Portfclios
v Cash is valued at its nominal amount;

*  Liguid assets such as money market instruments are
valued at amortised cost basis;

b Assels which include, in particular, intenssd and dividends

receivable, receivable for imvestrents sold and receivable
for Fund units subscnbed are valued at nominal value,

[38]  BlackRock Global Investment Seres

¢ Liabilties which include, in particular, payable for
investments purchased payable for Fund units redesmsd
interest and dividends payable are valued at nominal value.

{b) Realised gains and losses on sales of Investments

Realized gaing and lesses on sales of investments have bean
determined cn the basis of the average cost method.

{c} Incomea/Expense from Investments

The Fund takes credit for income from its investrments on the
following basis:

v interest income is accrued daily and includes the
amortication on & siraight-line basis of premiems and
accration of discounts;

¢ bank interest is recognised on an accrual basis;

¢ dividend income is accrued on the ex-dividend date and
% shown net of withholding tax;

¥ An interest rate differential (IRD7) is the difference
in interest rates between two similar inferest beaning
securities which anses from the currency hedging process
e.g. ifthe 1 month interest rate on S0 is 0.25% and on
ALID it s 1%, then the implied IRD s 0.75%. Traders in the
foresgn exchange market use IRD's when pricing forward
exchange rates. IRD's can be positve, nil or negative.
Inclusion of IRD's in dvidends may constitvte a payrment
from capital in some jurisdictions. IRD is recorded as
income or expense in the Statement of Operations
and Changes in Met Assets.

{d) Financial Dervative Instruments

During the year, the Fund has entered into a numbser af
forward foreign exchange transactions and futures contracts.
Opan forwand foreign exchange transactons and futures
contracts are valued at the fair market value 1o cdose the
contracts an the accounting date. SurplusesideSicits arising
from these and closed unseffed contracts are taken to net
unrealized appreciationf{depreciation) and ane included
under assets of liabilties (as approgriate) in the Staterment
of Net Assets.

The net change in unrealised appreciation or depreciation

and the net realised gains or losses on setfemnent or closing
transactions of forward foreign exchange transactions and
futures contracts are presented in the Statement of Operations
and Changes in het Assets.

During the year, the Fund has entered into swap agresments
to exchange the return generated by one instrument for the
roturn generated by anather investment, The Fund can write
credit default swaps ("CDS") and purchaze CDS. Vihen the
Fund writes andior purchases a CDS, a series of pramiums
is paid to or received by the Fund in refum for a payment
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Notes to Financial Statements continued

contingent on a credit event (predefined in the agreement).
The premiums afe included in the cost of CDS. Whede
possible, swaps are marked to market based upon daily prices
cbtained from third party pricing agents and verified against the
actual market maker. Where such quotations are not available
swaps are priced based upon daily quotations from the market
maker. In both caszes changes in quotations are recorded

as net change in unrealised appreciation or depreciation in

the Staternent of Operations and Changes in Met Assats,

Met realised gains or losses on maturity or teemination of the
swaps and the interest eamed in relation to the swaps are
presented in the Statement of Operations and Changes

in Mot Assets,

Each Portfolio may sefl call aptions and purchase put options
on stock indices to seek to hedge portfolio securities against
the impact of anticipated general price declines in equity
markets or specific industry sectors thereof, Options on indces
are similar to options on securities except that on exercise

of assignment, the parties to the contract pay of recehae an
amount of cash equal to the difference between the closing
value of the index and the exercise price of the option times

a specified multiple. The effectiveness of a hedge emplaying
stock index options will depend primarily on the degrea of
comelation between movements in the value of the index
undartying the cption and in the portion of the portfolio being
hedged. Amang cther factors, the degree of corelation with
respect to convertible securities will be affected by the degree
to which the market valee of portfolio securnties is attributable
to their conversion value. The net change in unrealised
appreciation or depreciation and the nel realised gains or losses
on expiration of closing transactions of options are presented
in the Statement of Operations and Changes in Met Assets,

{e) Foreign Exchange

The cost of investments in currencies other than the

currency of denomination of the respective Portfolio has

been translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the tinne

of purchase, Market value of investments and other assets

in currencies other than the curency of denomination of the
respective Portfolio have been translated at the exchange rate
prevailing at the Portfolios valuation point in Luxembourg as at
31 January 2018. The net change in unrealised appreciation or
depreciation and the net realised gains or losses on disposal
or setlement of other assets or iabilities in currencies cther
than the currency of denormnation of the respective Portifolio
are presented in the Statement of Operations and Changes

in Met Assets,

Income and expenses in currencies other than the cumrancy
of denomination of the respective Portfolio have been translated
at the rates of exchange prevailing on transaction date.

The following exchange rates were used to translate the
imvestroents and other assets and ather [kabilities for the
Income Strategies Portfolio and Super Money Market Fund
denominated in currencies other than the base currency

of the respective Fortfolic as at 31 January 2018.

Itm .!@;.-
CAD 0811260
ELIR 131151
) LANT0
G0 0. 762835

The following exchange rates were used to translate the
investrnents and cther assets and cther Eabilities for the Global
Allocation Portfolio, Global Equity Income Portfolio and World
Income Portfolio dencminated in currencies other (han the
base currency of the respective Porfolie as at 31 January 2018.

] tﬁm '
OEI4133
1 G770
06743
1 24050
1417500
0A2TET
0243470
INR 0015722

TKRW 0 000936
M 0053701
SER (PN
56D 0 TEAGT
™D G083
0084351

{fy Combined Financial Staterents

The Combined Financial Staternents of the Fund are expressed
in S0 and include the total of the financial statements of the
different Portfolios,

{g) Deferred Organisational Expenses

Deferred organisational expenses are capdtaksed and are
amortised on a straight-line bazis over a fve year period.

Ag at 31 January 2018, all Portfiolios had fully amortized their
deferred organizational expenses,

(h) Income Equalisation

Each Portfolio follows the accounting practice of equalisation
to prevent the undiztibuted income per unit from fluctuating
solely by remson of subscriptions and redemptions of its
wnits. This is accomplished by maintaining an equalization
account for the relevant Portficlio. The equalisation account

iz eredited with that portion of the proceeds of subscribed
units representing the net undistributed income per unit of
these units, and is debited with that portion of any redemption
payment represanting net undistributed income per unit of
the redesmed units, A portion of the dividends declared by

a Portfcdio may consist of amounts previously cedited to

the equalisation account. The yield reported to investors will
inciude amounts paid from net income as well as any amount
paid from the equalisation account.
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Notes to Financial Statements continued

The Income Egualisation is incduded in the Movements
in wnit capgital 0 the Statement of Operations and Changes
in Met Assats.

(i} Unfunded loans represent the remaining obligation
ofthe Fund to the bomower.

Az at 31 January 2018, the Income Strategies Porfolic had
an unfunded loan of LISD 98, 742 disclosed under “Payable
for unfunded loan” in the Statement of Net Assets.

(I} Transaction costs

Tranzaction costs are incremental costs that are directly
attributable to the acquestion, isswe or disposal of secunties.
An incremental cost is one that would not heve been incurred
if the entity had not acquired, issued or disposed of the
security. When a security Is recognised initially, it is measured
at its market value, plus transaction costs that are directly
aftributabie to the acquisition or issue of the security.

Transaction costs excheding cutodan transacton fees on
purchases or sales of zecurities are included within nat
realized gainiloss) or net change in unrealised appreciation/
{depreciation) within the Statement of Operations and Changes
in Met Assets of each Fund. Custodan fransaction fees are
included in Custody fees in the Staternent of Operations

and Changes in Net Assals of the Fund. Refer to Mote 8

for further information,

3. Management Company
BlackRock Fund Management Company 5 A is the
Management Company of the Fund.

Pursuant to the Management Regulations, the Managament
Company has agreed o manage the Funds Portfolios for the
exclusive account of the relevant Unitholders. The Custodian
and such other agents as appropriate, includng Distributors
of the Fund's Units in and cutside Japan are appointed by
the Management Company, The Management Cormpany

has delegated the appointment of Distributors

to the Prancipal Cestribastor.

BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A is a wholly owned
subsidiary within the BlackRock Group. It is regulated by the
Commission de Sunveifance du Sedleur Financier ("C55F).

4. Management and Distribution Fees
During the year, the Fund paid management fees to the
Management Company,

The level of management fee varies from 0.45% to 0L75%
of the NAW with the exceplion of Class F units. which do not
pay a management fee but rather a fee to the Investment
Advizer or affiliates under a separate agreement. The level
of management fes vanes according to which Portfolio and
unit class the investor buys. These fees accrue daily, are

[40]  BlackRock Global Investment Seres

based on the MAY of the relevant Portfolio and are paid
menthly. The Management Company pays certain costs and
fees out of the management fee, including the fees of the
Investment Advisers.

The Management Company has also entered into a
Digtribution Agreement with BlackReck westment
Management (UK} Limited (the principal "Distributor™).

The Principal Distributor may conclude contractual
arangements with certain Distributors for the distribution
of Units outside the U.5. such as the Japanese Distributors
{a=s disclosed on pages 3 to 4).

The level of distribution fee varies from 0.25% te 1.00%, of the
&Y, with the exception of Classes AD units, D units, F units,
Institutionad | units, which do not pay a distribution fee. The
level of distribution fee vanes accordng to which portfolio and
unit elass the investor buys, These fees accree daily, are based
on the NAY of the relevant Portfolio and are paid monthly.

The management and distribution fees per unit class for each
Portfolio are disclosed in detail in the Prospectus.

A fee waiver on management faes. distibution fees and
Coordination fees was in place on Super Money Market Fund's
Commeon, Current and Institutional | Units.

5. Coordination Fees

The Management Comparny has entersd into an agresment
with BlackRock Operaticns {Luxembourg) S.a rl. ("BROL"
pursuant to which BROL, under the direction of the Board
of Directors of the Management Company, provides certain
corporate and administrative coordination services on bahalf
of the Fund,

The Coordination fee rate is 0.025% of the average daily
MNAY of the Fund (excludng Class F Units). per annum.

6. Administration Fees

The Management Company has appointed State Straet

Bank Luxembouwrg 5.CA., 48, avenue J-F Kennedy,

L=1855 Luxembouwrg, as the Fund's Administrative Agent

in Luxembowrg to assist the Management Company at its
principal office in Luxembourg with general administrative tasks
pursuant to the Administration Agreemsnt, against charging
wsual fees for these senvices.

7. Audit Fees
Detaibed balow are the fees paid to Delote Sudit 5. rl,
for the year ended 31 January 2018,

Audd and audt relabed services
[emiEhadrg VAT )
Mom-gudit sanvices =
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Notes to Financial Statements continued

£. Custody Fees
The Managemasn Company has enered into the Custadian
Agreement with the Custodian, State Street Bank
Luxembourg 5.C.A

The Custedian Agreement provides that all securities and cash
of the Fund, other than eash held in trading accounts or held in
any cperating accounts for expenses or dvidend disbursement
aceounts (which rray be mantained at other banks), are to

be held by or to the order of the Custodian provided that

thie Management Company may place cash in overnight call
accounts or on term deposzit with other banks approved by the
Custodian, who shall continue to supervise such funds. The
Custodian is responsible for the collection of principal and
inceme on, and the payment for and collection of proceeds

of, securities bought and sald for the Fund,

The Custedian charges the Fund fees for these services in
accordance with its usual rates expressed as a faction of

a percentage per annum of the net assets of the Fund. The
Custodian may appoint cne or more cofrespondent banks, and
it iz expected that the Custedian retains a comespandent bank
in the United States, whosze fees shall be bome by the Fund.

9. Transactions with Connected Persons

The ultimate holding company of the Management Company,
the Principal Distributor, the imvestment Manager and

the Investment Advizers is BlackRock, Inc.. a company
incorporated in Dedaware, USA, PNC Financial Services Group
Inc. i= & substantial shareholder in BlackRock, Inc. When
arrangng transactions in securnties for the Fund, companies
in the PMC Group may have provided securities brokerage,
foreign exchange, bankeng and other services, or may

have acted as principal, on their usual terms and may have
benefited therefrom. Commissions have been paid to brokers
and agents in accordance with the relevant market practice
and the benefit of any bulk or cther commission discounts

of cash commissions rebates provided by brokers or agents
hawve been passed on to the Fund. The services of PNC Group
companies could have been used by the Investment Advisers
where it was considered appropriate to do so provided that
their commissions and other terms of business are generally
comparable with thoze available from unassociated brokers
and agents in the markets concemed, and this is consistent
with the above pelicy of cbiaining best net results,

During the year there have been no significant transactions
which were cutside the crdnary course of business or which
were not on normal commercial terms.

10, Taxation

Under present Luxembourg law and practice, the Fund is

not able to any Luxembourg ordinary income or capstal

gains tax, nor ane dividends paid by the Fund subject to any
Luxerbourg withholding tax. Howewver, the Fund is subject to
a subscription tax (taxe d'abonnement’) of 0.05% per annum
levied on the MAV of the Fund at the last day of each calendar
quarter, in accordance with the 2010 Law, except in respect
of Super Money Market Fund as well as in respect of the
Portfolios or unit classes reserved for institubional investors

within the meaning of Article 174 of the 2090 Law, on which

& reduced tax of 0.01% per annurm i levied, For the year
ended 31 January 2018, the Global Allocation Porifolio and
Werld Income Portfolio have not paid Luxembourg taxes, as no
subscriphion Bx is paid on the assets held by the Fund in other
undertakings for collechive investment already subject to that
tax in Luxembourg,

Under applicable foreign tax laws, withholding taxes may
be imposed on interest, dvidends and cap#al gains at
various rates.

11. Dividends

Super Money Market Fund — The net income (e, acerued
interest mcome net of accrued expenses) is declared a5 a
dividend on each valuation date on all Units sutstanding on
that day te the Unitholders of record immediately prior to the
daily determination of MAY per Unit, provided ahways that Units
shall be entitled to a dividend only from the day on which their
subscription is settled prior to 12 noon Luxembeurg time and
that Units redeemsad shall not be entitled to receie the daily
dividend declared on the settlernent day of their redemption,

The net mcome of the relevant other portfolios consists of

{i} interest acerued, discount eamed (including both original
issue and market discount) or other income earmed, (i) less
the estimated expenses of the Portfolio (including management
fees). In respect of each dividend declared, the Board of
Directors of the Management Comparry may determing if, and
to what extent, zuch dividend is to be paid out of undistributed
net imvestment income, realised and unrealised capital gains,
respectively increased or decreased by net egqualisation credits
or dabils.

12, Credit Facility

As at 3 January 2018, Income Strategies Portfolio was
entitted to a credit facility of IS0 65,000,000 from State Street
Bank and Trust Company, ending on 28 March 2018, As at

31 January 2018, a loan of USD 26,000,000 was drawn down
(2017 USD 25,000,000, & loan commitment fee is charged
on a daily basis in relation to this credit facility which is included
in the Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets.
The loan commitment fee consists of 0.15% charged on the
unused portion of the credit facility and the FED or LIBOR rate
{depending on which is higher) + 0.80% margn spread on the
used portion of the credit facility.

13. Security Pledged or Given in Collateral
Ag at 31 January 2018, no securibes have been given
or received as guarantee,

14, Investment Advisers

Subject to the overall responsibility of the lnvestment
Manager, each of the Portfolios receives imvestment advisory
services from the Investment Advisers: BlackRock Imvestment
Management (UKy Limited (BIM UK), BlackRock Japan Co.,
Ltd. (BLEJPM)} and BlackRock Financial Management, Inc.
{BFM Inc.) as describad in the Prospectus.

Annual Report and Audited Accounts  [41]
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Notes to Financial Statements continued

The Investment Advizers are each paid cut of the management
foe paid to the Management Compary a5 cutined in nabe 4.

The Investment Advisers form part of the BlackRock Group.

iabal Allacaticn Porflcha BL P
Ghobal Equiy income Forthobo BN LK
inciene Sirabigies Pertlcha EFM Ine
Super Money Marke! Fund BFM Inc
Wearld Income Porticlio BLEJFH

15. Financial Derivative Instruments and Efficient Portfolio
Management Techniques

Each of the Portfolios may use deratives to hedge

market and curmency sk, and for the purposes of efScient
portfolie management.

The use of derivatives may expose the Portfolios to a higher
degree of risk_ In particular, derivative contracts can be highly
volatile, and the amount of initial margin is generally small
relative to the size of the contract so that transactions are
geared, A relatively small market movernent may have a
patentially larger impact on dervatives than on standard
bands or equities.

Sea futher detalls in the specific Portfalio of Investments.,

16, Cash collateral

The Portfolios trade derivatives with a range of counterparties.
The counterparties to forward foreign exchange transactions
are shown in the Portfolio of Investments.

Cazh collateral iz padd or received on swaps bo ecver any
exposure by the counterparty to the Fund or by the Fund
to the counterparty. Due fromfo Brokers on the Staterment
of Met Assets consists of cash collateral paidireceived from
the Fund's clearing brokers and various counterpartes.

Az at 31 January 2018, there was no cash collateral and
margin paidirecenved from the Fund's clearing brokers and
varous counterparties.

17. Transaction costs

In order to achieve its investment cbjective, a Portfolio will incur
transactions costs in relation to trading activity on its Portfolio
of imcestments, Disclosed in the table below are separately
identifiable transacton costs incumred by each Portfolio for the
yaar ended 31 January 2018, These include commission casts,
setlemnent fees, broker fees and custodian fees.

Glabal Afecation Podlclio | LY =
Ghobal Equty Income Potiobo usD 28,408
Income Strabeges Porthoho ] U5 #21
Super Money Marke! Fund
Wlsrld Ieame Portiohs

usD -

[42] BlackRock Global Investment Seres

Mot all transaction costs are separately identifiable. For fixed
incarms inestmants, ferward foreign exchange ransactions
and other derivative contracts, transaction costs are included
in the purchase and sales price of the investment. Whilst net
separately identifiable these transaction costs will be captured
within the performance of sach Portfobo.

18, Subsequent events
There have been no significant subzsaquent events zince
the year end.

19. Legal proceedings

in May 2015, the Motors Liguidation Company Avoidance
Action Trust, as the Trust Administrator and Trustee of the
General Mobtors bankruptey estate, began Serving complaints
on former holders of certain General Motars debt (the “Debt™),
in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Scuthern District
af Mew York. The fomner holders of the Delbt, which are
defendants in the proceeding, include the BlackRock Global
investment Series - Income Strategies Portiolio (“15P%). In
addition to ISP, the lawsuit also names over five hundred other
institutional investors as defendants. including a number of
BlackRock fmnds. The defendants received full repayment of
the Debt on the understanding that it was fully secured

at the time of repayment. The plaintiffs contend that ISP and
other defendants were not secured creditors at the time of
the 2004 payments and therefore not entitled to the payments
in full. The plaintiffs are seeking an order that ISP and other
defendants return proceeds received in 2009 in full payment
of the pnncipal and interest on the Debt. 15P cannot predict the
outcome of the lawsuit, or the effect. if any, on ISPs net asset
value. As such, no liability for libgation related to thiz matter

is reflected in the financial statements.
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Appendix | — Unit Classes (Unaudited)

ger

H
£8
H
'
4
H
:
H

A Class distnbuting unt in AUD

& Clags distributing urit in EUR

A Clpgs didributing urit in USD

A Class distnbuting unit 3G0 hedped
A Class non-dst buting il mALD
A Class non=gstnbuting wnit in JPY
A Class norrastnbuting unil i LISD

A Clss dstributing unil in USD

B Clags distributing und in USD

€ Class disinbutmg und in USD

Common distrnibubng unit m S0

Cument distribubing unit in S0

F Class distnibuting unit in W30

Irsbiutsonal | dstnbuting umt in USD

o Chads cesinbuting urat in US0

* wvadable to mukoond imesios

Annual Report and Audited Accounts  [48]
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2019
2,002,316,635 218,973,347
256,146,827 28,012,217
1,746,169,808 190,961,130
364,399 39,851
1,257,116,366 137,478,246
488,689,043 53,443,034
364,399
1,257,116,366
488,689,043
1.00 109
1.00 109
1.00 109
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50 5,468 2019
12.5 1,367 40,000

24

2019 17 2019 17
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2019

Graham D. Bamping

Geoffrey D. Radcliffe

Francine Keiser

Leon J. Schwab

Joanne Fitzgerald

Adrian M. Lawrence

1990

Deloitte AuditS.a r.l.

Deloitte AuditS.a r.I.

2019

2,536,376,089.43
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38 59

2019 31

109.36

23 103
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2018 12 31

2018 2017
814 89,019 801 87,597
2,637 288,382 1,948 213,033
10 3,411 373,027 3,820 417,755
6,048 661,409 5,768 630,788
6,862 750,428 6,569 718,386
11 500 54,680 500 54,680
532 58,180 529 57,851
4,607 503,822 4,050 442,908
5,639 616,681 5,079 555,439
13 1,223 133,747 1,490 162,946
6,862 750,428 6,569 718,386

2019

13 33
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2018 12 31
.
2018 2017
14,114 1,543,507 13,284 1,452,738
(13,285)  (1.,452,848) (12,135)  (1,327,084)
829 90,659 1,149 125,655
(142) (15,529) (145) (15,857)
687 75,130 1,004 109,797
13 1,422 7 766
15 1,640 3 328
28 3,062 10 1,094
715 78,192 1,014 110,891
(155) (16,951) (213) (23,294)
560 61,242 801 87,597
*IFRS 15 17

13 33
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2018 12 31
2018 500 529 4,050 5,079
— — 560 560
— — 560 560
_ 3 3) _
2018 12 31 500 532 4,607 5,639
2017 500 450 3,328 4,278
— — 801 801
— — 801 801
— 79 79 —
2017 12 31 500 529 4,050 5,079
2018 54,680 57,851 442,908 555,439
— — 61,242 61,242
— — 61,242 61,242
— 328 (328) —
2018 12 31 54,680 58,180 503,822 616,681
2017 54,680 49,212 363,950 467,842
— — 87,597 87,597
— — 87,597 87,597
— 8,639 (8,639) _
2017 12 31 54,680 57,851 442,908 555,439

13 33
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2018 12 31
2018 2017

560 61,242 801 87,597

(13) (1,422) @ (766)

155 16,951 213 23,294

16 1,750 1 109

718 78,520 1,008 110,235

(689) (75,349) (691) (75,568)

13 (267) (29,199) (131) (14,326)

(238) (26,028) 186 20,341

(155) (16,951) (213) (23,294)

(393) (42,978) €20 (2,953)

(393) (42,978) 7) (2,953)

3,820 417,755 3,848 420,817

(16) (1,750) @ (109)

12 31 3,411 373,027 3,820 417,755

33
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2018 12 31

1855 35 35A,
Avenue JF Kennedy, Luxembourg L-1855, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

2019 23

) IFRS
IFRS

12
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2018 IFRS
IFRS IFRS 15
IFRS
IFRS 2014 IFRS
IFRS
IFRS 1AS 39
IFRS
2018
IFRS
IFRS IAS 39
IFRS
IFRS
IAS 39
IFRS
IFRS
IFRS IFRS
IAS 39
IFRS
IFRS
IFRS 15
IFRS 15

IFRS 15 IAS 18
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IFRS 15
1AS
17
IFRS IFRS
IFRS 2015 2017 2019
IFRIC 22 2019
IFRS 2015 2017
IFRS
IFRIC 22

IFRIC 22
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IFRS

12
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IFRS

IFRS
IFRS

IFRS
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2017

12 12
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2018 2017

IFRS 15
2018 2017

5,038 4,033

520 789

2,586 2,978

5,970 5,484

14,114 13,284

2018 12 31 2017 12 31
2,301 1,702

IFRS 15 121
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2018 2017
16 1
2018 2017
237 220
(82) Q)
155 213
26.01 2017
27.08 2017
2018 2017
715 1,014
186 275
( ) _ )
51 57
¢ ) 7)
(82) ™
155 213
IFRS 12
IFRS 10

814 (2017 801 )
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2018 12 31 14,105 (2017 13,269
") 2018 12 31 2,301 (2017
1,702 )
2018 12 31 22 (2017 23 )
*2017 17
2018 2017
814 801
2018 2017
801 794
13 7
12 31 814 801

12 31 814 801
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12.50

2014
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50

2018 2017
336 242
2,301 1,702
— 4
2,637 1,948
2018 2017
3,411 3,820
2018 2017
40 500 40 500
10
2018 2017
2017 124
125 2017 45
482 2017 479
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2018 2017

38 37
1,185 1,453
1,223 1,490

2018 2017 2018 2017
1 1 1 1

2018 2017 2018 2017
3,411 3,820 3,411 3,820
2,637 1,948 2,637 1,948
6,048 5,768 6,048 5,768
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2018 2017 2018 2017
1,223 1,490 1,223 1,490
1 — 1
1 — 1
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3,411 — 3,411
2,637 — 2,637
6,048 — 6,048
2017
3,820 — 3,820
1,948 — 1,948

5,768 — 5,768
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/
6,048 — — 6,048 —
/
5,768 — — 5,768 —
/
20 20

41
45
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2018

336

2017

242

2018

14,278
99

14,377
1,185

2017

— 8,820
— 102
— 8,922
172 1,281
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IFRS 15 1AS
i

1,149 12,135 13,284
— (12,135) (12,135)

1,149 — 1,149
(145) — (145)

1,004 — 1,004

IFRS 15

www . blackrock.com
55 52
invrel@blackrock.com.
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Statement of Financial Pozition as at 31 December 2008

s 27

Nole 50U 5000
Ansets
Non-current assels
Oer non-current linancial assels K #14 201
Coarreni msseis
Trade s ntheer reeeisvables L 2037 1, 0d®
Cagh ool cash equn alems 1 A4l 1820

I [R4% 5.768

Tkl sscts ——E G568
Exuity ani labilifles
Faquity
Calked vp share capitnd 1 00 500
{hher resenes 512 510
Retained earmngs 4.607 4050
Tudal cquny SEW 507
Current limbilities
Trade sl nther moyable 13 1,221 1.4
Teaal equaty and labilitics 6,62 1, 56

Approned by the board oo 3 Moy 2009 and sipned on its belall by

M= Leon Schwah
Directer

The motes on pages 13 1o 33 foom an intzcral port of these Dmancial strenems,
Page 10
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BlackHock Fund Management Company 5. A.

Income Statement for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

Restated®

il B 27

MNote 5 000 5 00

Revenue 4 14,114 13,284

Cost of sales (13,285 (12135)
Ciross profit 220 1,140
Administrative expenses (142) (145)
Operatmg profit 5 HE7 1,004
Fnance incorme 13 7
et gams losses on derivative financial instrsments 15 3
Net finance moome 28 10
Profit before bax 715 1014

Income tax expense [ (155) (213)
Profit for the vear 56 201

The above results were derived wholly from continuing operations.

The comparry has ne other comprehensive moome for the vear other than the resullz above. Total comprehensive
income is equal to profit for the vear.

* See note 2 and note 17 for details regarding the restatement of comparatives following the implementation of
IFRS 15

The notes on pages 13 1o 33 fonm an inbegral part of these financial statements.
Page 9
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At 1 January 2018
FProfit for the vear

Total comprehensive income
Transfer to other reserves

At 31 December 2018

AL 1 January 2017
Profit for the vear

Todal comprehensive income
Transfer to other reserves

At 3] Decemnber 2017

BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

Hetalned
Share capital  Other reserves carnings
50 5 0HM 5 004
S04 529 4080
a0
- 560
3 (3
S04 532 4,607 =
Called up share Retalned
capltal  Other reserves earnings
£ 000 = 000 £ 004
5040 450 3328
- B0l
- 201
72 0%
S0 529 4,050 -

The note: on pages 13 1o 33 Foom an integral pan of these fnancial statements,

162/288
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BlackHock Fund Management Company 5.A.

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

Cash fMlows from operating activities

Profit for the vear

Adjustimients Lo cash flows froen non-cash tems
Finance ncoms

Income L expense

Foreign curmency losses

Working capital adjustments
Increase in trade and other receivables
Diecrease in trade and other payables

Cash movernents from operstions

Income taxes paid

et cazh flow from operating activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 Jarmary

Effect of exchange rate Muctuations on cash held
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

The notes on pages 13 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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BlackHock Fund Management Company 5. A.

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

1 General information
The compary is a private company limited by share capital incorporated and domiciled in Luxemboung.

The address of itz registered office is:

354, Avenue JF Kennedy

Lacembourg

L-1855

Grand Duchy of Liscembourg

The principal activity of the comparny is the provision of investment management, administration and
distribution services of Lizcembourg collective imvestment undertakings and the issue of certified or statement of
undivided co-progrictorship interests in these funds,

BlackRock Global Investment Series currently offers investors the opportumity to invest in five separale
portfalios:

= Suprer Money Markel Fund:

= Grlobal Equity Income Portfolio;
* Income Strategics Portfolio;

* Waorld Inceme Porttolio; and

* Gilobal Allocation Porifolio.

Thesze financial statements were authorised for issue by the board on 23 April 2019,

2 Accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these fimancial statemenis are set out below.
Thesze pelicies ave been consigtently applied 1o all the vears presented. unless otherwize stated,

Basis ol preparation

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost accounting basts, execept for financial
instruments measured at fair value (235 explained in the accounting policies below), and in accordance with
International Financial Reportmg Standards ("TFRS") and IFRS Interpretations Committee interpretations as
adegted by the European Usion,

The financial staterments are presented in US dollar,

Page 13

164/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

BlackHock Fund Management Company 5. A.

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

2 Accounting policies {contined)

Going concern
The company's business activities, together with the facters likely to affect its future development, performance
aind pozition are set oul in the Directors' Report on pages 1 to 5 along with key rigks Gacing the compary,

In assessing the compamy's going concem status, the directors have taken into account various factors, including
the fimancial position of the comparry ad in particular the significant net cash pesition. The comgany has, at the
date of this report, sufficient existing finances available for itz estimated requiramnents for the et twelve
mveniths. This, together with its proven ability to generate cash from eperations, provides the directors with the
confidence thal the campary 15 well placed to manage its business risks successfully,

After making appropnate enquiries, the direclors have a ressonable expectation that the company has adequate
resources 1o continue i operational existence for the foresecable future, Accordingly, they continue to adopt the
going concemn basis in prepaning the Directors’ Report and financial statements.

Changes in accounting policy

Adoption of new and revised standards

Om 1 Janwary 2018, the company adopted all the new and revised IFRSs that were effective from that date and
were relevant to i operations. The compan's accoumtimg policies have been updated accordingly for the
adoption of LERS 9 Financial fnstruments and TFRS 15 Revernes from Contracts with Customers.

TFRS ® Finaelal Instrionents

In the cwrent vear, the compary haz applied [FRS 9 (a2 revized in July 20145 and the related consequential
amendments to other IFRSs, IFRS @ introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial assets, for general hedge accomting and for impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 supersedes the
suidance contained in fatersstiony Accowting Stowdord (“IASY) 39 Fiaencial Instrumients) Recogrition amd
Meesrremend. The company has applied IFRS 9 in accondance with itz transitional provizionz and has elected
ot Lo restate comparatives on imtial application.

Based on an analbysis of the company's financial assets and financial linbilities as at 1 Jamary 2018 and on the
facts and ciroenstances that existed at that date, the directors have assessed the impact of IFRS 9 on the
comparry's financial statements as follows:

Cliaesification and meaniremens:

Fingseiol acvets

IFES 9 eliminates the previous [AS 39 assel colegones of held-toansturity, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale. Under IFRS 2. all recopnised financial assets are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value (with changes in fair value reflected in the ncome statement or other comprehensive
InCome).
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BlackHock Fund Management Company 5. A.

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

2 Accounting policies {contined)

Under IFRS 2 the classification of financial asset debt instruments depends on both the company's business
medel for managing the debt instruments and its contractual cash flow characteristics, The business model
azsesamnent looks at whether a business will manage itz financial assels to generate cash flows from cellectmg
the contractual cash flows, selling the financial aszet or both, The contractual cash flow test considers whether
or nod the cash flows an entity receives on the instniment are made up selely of payments of principal and
interest ("SPPI"L

There were no financial assets which the comparsy has previously designated as fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL") under IAS 39 thai were subject to reclassifications, or which the company has elected to reclassify
upon adoption of [FRS @

“The adoption of IFRS 9 has had no impact on the measurement of the company's financial assets.

Fireziciad liabifities

Under IFES 9, financial liabilities are measured at amorised cost or far value through the income statement
The adoption of IFES 2 has had no impact on the classification and mesamrement of the company's financial
liabilities.

Irepairnne

The mew mnpainment requirements are based on an expected credit loss ("ECL") model and replace the incurred
lesz model under IAS 39, The ECL mexlel anticipates impairment losses by recognising them before they are
realiged. The impact of the new inmpaiment requirernents under [FRS 9 has not had a material anpact on the
financial statements,

As the company does not apply hedoe accounting, the application of the [FRS 2 hedpe accounting requirements
does not have a material impact on the company's financial statements,

TFRS 15 Revene from contracls with cusfomers

IFES 1% has been adopted in these financial statemyents. It establishes a smgle comprehensive model for entifies
to e i accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers. IFRS 15 supersedes the previous
revenue recegnition guidance including fAS F8 Revernae and the related interpretations.

The primary impact of IFRS 15 on the compary”s financial statements has been to the presentation of revenue,
which i= now disclosed gross of certain retrocessions and administration servicing fees paid to grougy companics.
The company bas applied the changes retrospectively, with the prior period restated in accordance with 145 8
Acconnting Policies, Changes in Accowting Extimates and Ervors, applying the permitted practical expedients
where relevanl. Note | 7 sumsnarises the impact on the prior period as a result of these changes.

Standards not yvel effective

Al the date of authorisation of these financial staternents, the following new/revised [FRSs and amendments (o
IFES have not vet been applied, as they were not effective for the periods reported:

*  Amendments to SRSy Al Improvemends fo IFRS Stmdards 200 5-2007 Cwele (effective for annual
perinds beginning on or after | Tanuary 20019),

« JFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Trossactions and Advance Consideration (effective for ammal periods
beginnmg on or after 1 January 2009

Anreal Inmprovements fo JTFR Sy 20052017 Cyele

The directors do not anticipate that the spplication of the amendments in the fiture will have a significant
impact on the company's financial statements as the compamy is neither a first-time adopter of IFRS nor &
venie capital organisation.
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BlackHock Fund Management Company 5. A.

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

2 Accounting policies {contined)

TFRIC 22 Forelgn Ciorency Transactfons and Advance Consideration

IFRIC 22 addresses how to determine the ‘date of transaction’ for the purpose of deermining the exchange rate
to use on mitial recognition of an assel. expense or income, when consideration for that stem has been paid or
received in advance in a foreign currency which resulted in the recognition of 8 non-monclary assel or
non-monedary liability (e.g. a non-refundable deposii or deferred revenue). The directors do not anticipate that
the application of the amendments in the future will have a significant impact on the compamy's fimancial
slaterments as the company already accounts for transactions involving the payment or receipt of advance
consideration in a foreign cemency in a way that is consistent with the amendments,

Revenue recognition

Fevenue is recognised wpon transfer of control of promised services to customers, i.c when (of ash a
performance obligation is satisfied, in an amount that reflectz consideration to which the comparny expects to be
entitled in exchange for these services (the "transaction price™), et of VAT, The company enters into contracts
that cam include multiple services and, in certidn mstamces, may charge a “unitary fee™ Lo cover these services,
Such fees are accounted for separately if they are determuned to be distmct. Consideration for the company's
services 15 generally in the form of variable consideration because the mmount of fees is subject to market
comditions that are outside of the company’s nfluence. The company includes variable consideration as part of
itz trangaction price when it iz highly probable that a significant reversal will nol occur, Le, when the associated
uricerfainty 1% reselved. For some contracts with customers, the company involves thrd parties and related
parties in providing services o the customer. Generally, the company 15 desmed to be the principal in these
arrangements because the company controls the promised services before they are transferred Lo customer s, and
accordingly presents the revenue gross of related costs

Irvestment Acvizory and Administration Fees

Investment advisory and administration fees are recognised as the services are poafomed over time. Such fees
are primarily based on agreed-upon percentages of ned aseet value, AUM of committed capital. These fees are
affected by changes in AUM, including marketl appreciation or depreciation, foreign exchange translation and
el mflows or outflows, Investment advisory and adrmimstration fees for mvestment himds are shown net of lees
watved pursuant Lo contractual expense lmitations of the funds or veluntary wavers. Fecs are generally
invoiced monthly inarmears.

Distribestion Fees

The company accounts for find distnbution services and sharcholder sorvicing as distmct services, scparale
from investment advisory services, because customers can benefit from each of the services on iheir own and
becase the services are separately identifiable (that iz, the natwre of the promised services is to transfer each
service individually), The company records sales commizzions as distribution fee revemme for serving as the
principal underwriter and/or distributor for certain mutual funds that it mamages. Distribution foes are generally
based on net asset values and are recognised when the services are perfonmed and the amount is known
Consequently, a portion of the distibution fees the company recognised may be related to the services
performed m prior pericds that met the recognition criteria in the current period. The company recogises
engoing shareholder servicing fee revenue when and as shareholder services are performed over time. The
comgany contracts with third parties for various fumd distribution services and shareholder servicing of certain
fundz to be parformed on il behalf, These arrangements are generally priced az a portion of the fee paid to the
company by the fund or as an agreed-ugron percentage of net s=sel value. The company presents its distribution
fees and distnbution and servicing ceets incurmed on 2 gross basis as it is deemed to be the principal n such
transactions.
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BlackHock Fund Management Company 5. A.

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

2 Accounting policies {contined)

Forelgn eurrency transaciions and balances
The fmancial statements are presented in US dollar, which is the currency of the primary economic enviramment
ifs whiich the company operstes (its flmetional cumency),

Transactions in currencies other than the compamy’s functional currency (foreign oumrencies) are recognised at
the rates of exclmnge prevailing on the dates of the transactions, At ¢ach balance sheet date, menctary assets and
ligbil#ties that are denoiminated in forelgn curvencies are retranslated al the pates prevailing at that date
Non-monetary ilemns carried at fair vabue that are denominated in foreign cumencies are transkated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the far vahie was determned. Non-motetary items thal are measured in tenns of
historical cost in a foreign cumency are nol retranslated. Exchange diferences are recognised in the incomse
statement in the period in which they anse.

Tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently pavable,

The curmrent income tax charge 15 calculsted on the basis of tax rates and [ows that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date in the coumiries where the company operates and generates taxable
income,

Finamcial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized on the company's statement of financial pesition when
thee comprainy becomes a party 1o the contmctial provisions of the matiument.

Becognition crd ne asurement

All regular way purchases or sales of fmancial assets or labilitics are recogmised and derecogmized on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are those that require delivery of assets within the time frasne
established by regulation or convention of market place.

Financial assefs and financial liabilities are measured mitially at fair value Transaction costs that ane directly
attribaable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and fnancial liabilities (other than financial assets and
fimancial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair valee of the financial assets or financial
liabiliies, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attrbutable to the acquisition of
financial assets or fnmancial labilities a2t FVTPL are recogmised immediately in the income statement.

Finanecial assets

Classificeation

The compamy classifies and subsequently measures its financial assefs into one of the categories discussed
below depending on the nahere and purpese of the financial assets acquired This is determined at the time of
imitial recogiition

Finaricial assets that meet the following ¢onditions are subsequently measuned at amortised cost:

+  the financial asset 1= held within a business model whose objective 15 to hold finsscial aseets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

= the contracteal terme of the fmancial asset give rise on specified dates to cagh Nows that are SPPT on the
principal amount outstansdmg

Fmancial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other

comgrrehensive income ("FVTOCT™):

+ the financial asset is held within a business model whose dbjective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling the financial assets; and
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BlackHock Fund Management Company 5. A.

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

2 Accounting policies {contined)

+ the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPL on the
principal amount ciutstanding,

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.

Despite the above, the comgany may make the following mrevocable election/desigmation at imtial recognition
of a financial asset:

* the company may iwevocably elect to presont subsequent changes in fair value of an equaty investment in
other comprehensive mcome if certain criteria sre met; and

+  the company may irevocably designate a debt investment that meets the amoriised cost or FVTOCT eritena
as mcasured at FYTFPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an acc ounting mismatch.

Amaortised cost and efTective interest method
The companmy s financial assels measured at amortised cost comprise ade and other recevables and cash and
cash equivalents,

The effective interest method 12 3 method of caleulating the amorized cost of a financial aseet or liability and of
allocating interest meome or expense over the relevant period. The effective inferest rate is the rate that exactly
discoumits estimated fsture cush receipts or paaments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective mterest rate, transaction costs and other promomns or discounts) excluding expected
credit losses through the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or, where approgriate, a shorter period,
o the pet carmrying amount on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial assel is measured at initial
recommiiticn minus the principal repayments, plus the comulative smortsation using the effective interest method
of amy difference between that mitial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance, On the
other hand, the gross camying amoumt of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before
adjusting for any loss allowance,

Income iz recegmsed on an efective interest basiz for financial assets other than those financial assets classified
as FVTPL.

Forelgn exchange galns and losses

The carrying amwamt of financial azzets that are demominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign
currency and tramslated at the spot rate al the emnd of each reporting period. For financial assets measured at
amortized cost that are not part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange differences are recognised in the
income statement and disclosed in note 5,
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BlackHock Fund Management Company 5. A.

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

2 Accounting policies {contined)

Impalrment of Mnanclal assets

All debt-type fiancial assets which are not measured st FVTPL are assessed for impaimment at each reporting
date usimg a forward-locking approach by identifving ECLs, ECL= are defined as the difference between the
comtractual cash flows that are due in accordance with the contract and the cash lows that the comgeany expects
ioreceive, discounted at the original effective interest rate.

As permitted by IFRS & mpaimment provisions for trade receivables are recognised based on the sumplified
approach within IFRS 9 using the lifeteme expected credit losses, During this process the probability of the
non-payiment of the trade receivables is assessed using the single loss-rate approach

Impairment provisions for other financel assets are recognised based on a forward leoking ECL medel. The
methodology wsed to determine the amount of the provision is based on whether there has been a signaficant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition of the financial asset. For those where credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, twelve-month ECLs are recognised. For those where credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECLs are recognised.

For assets held at amortised cost, amy ECL is recognized in the income stalemenl with a cormresponding
adjuztment to the aszet’s canymg valee through a provision account. For assets held st FVTOCL, the loss s
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investiment revaluation reserve.

Based on analysis at the end of the reporting period, the mpairment on the company™s assets is considered to be
imeaterial and no allowance has been recognised in the financial statements,

Derecognition of fnancial assets

The company derecognises a financial asset only when the comtracheal rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, of when it tranefers the financial asset and substantialle all the risks and revards of ewnership of the
assel o another entity, If the compary neither transfers nor retains substantially all the nsk and reward of
ownership and contimies (o control the translerred assel, the compary recogmises ibs relaimed mterest i the assel
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the compamy retains substantrally all the risk and
reward of cwnership of a transferred finamcial assel, the company continues to recognise the lnanceal asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received,

On derecognition of & financial asset (measured at mmontised cost) in its entirety, the difference between the
azsel’s carrying ameunt and the sum of the conzideration received and receivable is recognised in the income
statement. For fimancial assets at FVTOCL, the comulative gain or loss that had previously been acoumulated in
the mvesiment revaluation reserve is reclassified to the meome statement

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in s entirety (e.g. when the company retains an option to
repurchase part of a transferred assel or retams a residual interest that does not result in the retention of
substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership and the company retains control), the company allocates the
previous carying amounts of the financial asset between the part it continues to recogrise under continuing
involvement, and the part it no longer recogrses on the basis of the relative far values of those parts on the date
of transfer.

On derecognition of an investment in an equity instrument which the company has elected on initial recognition
to measure at FVTOCT, the ammulative gain or less previeusly accumwlated in the mvestment revaluation
reserve is nol reclaszified to the income atement, but i3 transferred to retained eamings.
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BlackHock Fund Management Company 5. A.

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

2 Accounting policies {contined)

Financial Habilities and equity Instruments

Dett anil equity instruments issued by the company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a fmancial liability and an
equity instrment.

Equity instruments

An equity mstrument 15 ary contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deductmg
all of its liabilitiez. Equity instruments izsued by the company are recognized at the proceeds received, nel of
direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the company’s own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. Mo gan or
los= 15 recognised i the income statement on the purchase, sabe, issue or cancellation of the compamy's own
equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

Al financial liabilities are subzequently measured at amortieed cost using the effective interest method or
FVTPL.

Financial Habilities at FVTPL

Financial linbilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial lability 15 either a contingent consideration
acquired ina business combmation, held for trading, or it is designated as FVTPL.

A financial liability is classificd as held for trading if:

= it has been acquired principally for the purpose of repurchiasing it in the near temm; or

= on imitial recognition it 15 part of a portfolio of identified financial nstruments that the group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short texm profit-taking; or

* it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated and effective
hedging imstrument.

A finamcial liability other than a financial liability held for tradimg or contingent consideration of an acquirer ina

business combination may be designated as FVTPL upon initial recognition if;

+ such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a messurement or recognition inconsistency that would
ollierwise anise; of

= the financial Lability forms part of a group of financial Babilites, which is managed and itz performance is
evaluated on a fur value basis, in accordance with the group's documented rsk management or investmeil
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided imtemally on that basis; or

= it forms pant of a contract contamimg one of more ambedded denvatives, and [FRS 9 permilz the entire
combined conract to be designated as at FVTPL.

The company does not have any liabilities held for trading noe bas it designated any fnancial liabilities as being

al FVTPL.

Oither fnancial lishilites

Other financial lizbilities, inchiuding borrowings and trade and other payables, ane initially measured at far

value, net of transaction costs, Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective imterest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective vield basiz
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BlackHock Fund Management Company 5. A.

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

2 Accounting policies {contined)

Forelgn exchange galns and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in & foreign cumrency and are measured at amortised cost at the end
of each reporting period. the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of
the instnumentz. These foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized im the income statement for financial
liabilities that are not part of a designated hedgmg relationship. The fair value of financial labilities
denominated in a foreign currency s determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the
end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured at FVTPL, the forcign exchange
comgronent forms part of the fair valiee gains or losses and iz recognized in the income for fnancial liabilities
that are ned part of a designated hedging relationship.

Derecognition of Anancial liabilities

Financial liabilities are derecognized only when the company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they
gxpire, The difference between the carmying amount of the financial lability derecogmized and the consideration
paid and payvable is recogmised inthe income staterment,

Reclassification of lnancial assels and liabilitics
Fmancial assets are reclassified under IFRS @ only when the company's business model for managing fimncial
assets changes. In this situation, all affected financial assets would be reclassified according to the basic
classification and measurement criteria of [FRS 2,

Financial liabilities cannot be reclassified under [IFRS 9,

Valuation techniques and sssumptions applied For the pur peses of measuring i value
The Fair values of fmancial assets and fimancial liabilties are d dermined az follows:

*  the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded on
active liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices level 17

+  the fair valees of (inancial sssets and financial liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) are determined
in sccordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discoumted cash flow anabysis using prices
from ebservable cument market transactions and dealer quotes for similar instruments (level 27

+  the fair values of financial assets and fmancial mbilities derived from vahiastion techniques that are not based
on observable market date (unobservable market inputs) ("level 370

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities of the company are all determined at level 1 (2007; level 1),

Derivatives and hedging

The company uses derivative financial instruments to economically hedge its risk associated with forcign
exchange movements and to economically hedze against market price exposure with respect to certain seed
investments, It is not the company ‘s policy to trade in derivative instrumenz. The comgany docs not designate
itz denvative instrument as a formal hedgmg mstruments and hedge accounting is not applied.

Derivatives are initially recognized at fawr value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subspquently re-measured to their fair value at each statement of financial position date. The resulting gain or
lesz iz recogmsed in the incomme statement anmediately.

A dervative with a positive fair value is recognised as a financial asset whereas a derivative with a negative far
value 15 recogmsed as a finemcial liabality. A derivative is presented as a non-cument assel oF @ non-curment

liability if the remaining matunty of the instmument is more than 12 months and it 15 not expected to be realised
or seftled within 12 months, Other derivatives are presented as current assets or currend liabilities.
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BlackHock Fund Management Company 5. A.

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

3 Critical accounting judgemenis and key sources ol estimmation uncertainty

Imcome taxes

“The company 15 subject to income tax and judgement 15 required in determining the provision for tos. There are
mary tmnsactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The company
recognises provisions for tax based on estimates of the taxes that are likely to become due. Where the final tax
outcome i different from the amounts that were initially recorded. such differences will impact the curent
ingone tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made,

Full details are set out in note 6,

4 Hevenue

The company's revenue relates wholly to the provision of mvestment managament of muteal funds and
assodiated services. The table below presents the compary's revenue for 2018 and 2017, and disaggregates
investment advisory, administration and distnibution fees by investment style. See note 2, Accounting Policies,
o further information on the company ‘s revenue recomition policy and adoption of IFRS 15,

Restated

2018 0m7

£ 00 BRI
Cash management 5038 4,033
Equity 520 789
Fixved moome 3586 2078
Multi-asset 5970 3484
Total revenue 14,114 13,284

The followang table provides imformation about contract as=ets and recetvables from contracts with customers,
31 December 31 December

2018 207
5 (M) £ (i
Coniract assels z3m 1,702

The contract assets relate to the comparr's conditional rights to consideration for services, primarily relating to
acerued income for unbilled services, These are disclosed as secrued meome in note 9.

Transaction price allocated to remaining per formance obligations

Smee the company recognises revene as services are performed, which comesponds to the amount to which it
haz a mght to mvoice, it has applied the practical expedient in paragraph 121 of [FRS 15 and does not disclese
information rebating to its remaining performance obligations.
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BlackHock Fund Management Company 5. A.

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

5 Operating profit

Amived at after charging
g 2017
5 000 5 0y
Foreign exchanze losses 16 1

6 Incoms (ax

The company is subject to Licembourg corporate moome tax, municipal business tax and net wealth tax, The
charge allocated to the company as part of the fiscal unity to which it forms a part of, representing corporate
income tax and mumicipal buziness tax iz shown below:

2018 2017
5 iy E Dy
Current taxation
Lasermbourg corporation tax 237 220
Laembourg corporation tax adjustments in respect of prior periods (&) (7
133 213

The tax on profit before tax for the year is lower than (2017: lower than) the standard rate of corporation tax in
Licembourg of 26.00%0(2017; 27.08%),

208 27
5 (M) 5 iy
Profit before ax - 715 1,014
Corporation tax at standard rate 186 275
Increase from effect of expenses not deductible in determining taxable
profit (tax loss) . 2
Increase (decrease) in curment tax from unrecognised foreign exchange
gams or losses fromi tax balance sheel revaluation 51 (57)
Decreasze in cumrent tax from adjustments in respect of prior periods (82 (7}
Total tax charge 155 213
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Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

T Interests in unconsolidated structured entities

The company manmges vestment funds which are considered 1o be structured entities within the definition of
IFES 12, Structured entities are not consolidated as the compary does not have “control™ as defined under JFRS
18 Consclickged Finemcial Statements. The companry receives an interest in these unconsolidated structured
entities through the receipt of investment advisory, administration and distribution fees from related parties. The
unconsolidated structured entities are constituted as open-cnded iy estment COManbes.

The uncensolidated structured entities have individual investment objectives and policies and are subject to the
termes and conditiohs of their respective offering documentation, However, all unconsolidated structured entities
invest capital primarily from third-party investors in a pontfolio of assets in order to provide a retum o those
investons from capital appreciation of those asselz, income from those assets, of both. Accordmgly, they are
susceptible to market price risk arsing from uncertainties about fisture vabues of the asset they hold,

“The unconsolidated structured entities are financed through equity capital provided by investors. Additionalky,
the company holds an mvestment m the BlackRock Global Investment Senes Super Money Market Fund of
S84k (200 7: 3801 K), Seenote 8§ for details.

The fees received during the yvear to 31 December 2018, in relation to the above, were 314,105k (2017:
£13,269%* ). The camving value on the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018 15 $2,301k (20017:
§1,702K), as represented by trade debtors and accrued income,

The AUM of the compary as 3l 31 Decemnber 2018 was 52 2bn (2017: 52, 3bm),
*amoamits relating (o 201 7 have been restated as outlined in note 17.

Maximum exposure (o loss
The comparmy's macdinmm exposure bo loss associated with iks interest in these unconsolidated structured entities
15 lEmited to the amounts shown above,

Financial support
“The commpany has not provided financial support to any of its unconsolidated stnuctured emities duning the vear,
anil has no contractual obligations or current intention of providing financial support in the future.

Other Information

There are no differences 1o the economic or veling rights attachmg to the equity held by the company from these
held by other investors, There are no lquichty arrangements, gusratee: or other commitments that may affect
thee Fair value o risk of the companmy's imterest m the unconsolidated smctured entities.

8 Financial asseis

s 2017
& 00y £ iy
Non-current fnancial assets
Available for sale financial azsets 814 301
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Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

8  Financial assefs (continued)

Movement in available for sale assels

2018 2m7
5 000 5 ik
Cost
Al 1 January i o4
Additions 13 7
At 31 December 814 201
Carrying amount
At 31 December 814 Gl

Available for sale financial assets represent the company's holdings in the BlackRock Global Investment Series
Super Money Market Fund, as outhned innote 7. Additions represent reinvested distribistions,

9 Trade and other receivables

28 2017
T £ iy
Feceivables due from related parties 336 242
Accrued income 2301 1,702
Other receivables - 4
2,637 1,548
All trade and other receivables are due within one vear.
10 Cash and cash equivalents
2018 27
5 00 £ 00f
Cash at bank 3411 3,820
11 Share capital
Allotted, called up and Tully paid shares
2018 27
No. 0imp £ 000 Mo, (Wb 5 iy
Ordinary shares of $12.50 each 40 SO0 A0 S04
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Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

12 Other reserves

Legal reserve
Luxembourg companies are requared to appropriate to the legal reserve & minimum of 324 of the annual net
ineoare, after deducting amy loszes brought forward, until such reserve equals 10% of subszcribed capital.

This reserve may not be distributed, in the form of cash dividends or otherwise, during the life of the compamy.

Mo allocations were made in 2017 of 2008 as the maximen S50k had already been reached, This reserve is
ingluded as other reserves in the statement of fnancial position,

Net Wealth Tax Reserve

The members® general meeting has ratified the creation of a special net wealth tax reserve in order to reduce the
net wealth tax pavable by the comparmy. This special reserve amounts to five times the envizsaged net wealth tax
credit. This special net wealth tax reserve has to remam unavailable for distnibution for five years to take
advantage of the reduction in net wealth tax liability, This reserve is inclided as other reserves in the statement
of financial position,

Draring the vear, amounis totalling $128% (2017: £124%) were allocated to the net wealth tax reserve.

Additionally. smmounts totallmg $125k (2017: 345k) relating to amounts transferred pre 2004 were released from
the net wealth ta reserve o retamed camings.

The net wealth tax reserve ol 31 December 2018 amounted to S482k (2007; $4T9K).

13 Trade and other payables

2018 207

S 000 £ 000
Orther creditors ig E¥)
Amounts due to related partics 1,185 1,453
1,223 1,490

All trade and other pavables are due within one year.
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14 Financial instruments

Financial assels

Derivative financia assels o folr valiue theough profit or bess lreld for trading

Forward foreign exchange contracts

Vielration me s and asstompions

Carrying value

2018 27

5 004 ERLUE
1 1

20
UL

Fair value

207
§ ()

The far valwes of derivative instruments are calcukated using quoted prices and therefore categorized as level 1

securities in the air value hierarchy.

At the statement of financial position date, foreign exchange forward contracts were in place to hedge the
transactional foreign exchange exposure of the entity, These forwards have a tenor of less than ooe month,

Financtal aizels o amortived cost

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other recenvables

Viefrsention metfiods cwned cssinmprtions

Trade and other recemvables:

Carrying value Fair value

208 207 2018 2017

£ 00y £ Dy % [ = Dy
31411 3820 3411 3820
2,637 1,948 2637 1,948
6,048 5768 6,048 3768

Trade receivables are typically settled in a short tme frame, As a result, the fair valoe of these balances is

considered to be materially equal to the carying value, after taking into account ECLs. At the statement of

financial position date, o allowance has been recegnised for impainment of irade and olher receivables as ECLs

are considered 1o be immaterial.
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Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

14 Financial instruments {contimed)

Finamcial labilities
Financiad Habélitles of amortised cost
Carrying value Fair value
2018 27 2% 207
5 004 ERLUE 5 0pip 5 iy
Trade and other payvables 1,223 1490 1,223 1490
Vielration me s and asstompions
Trade and other pavables:

Trade payables are typically settled in 2 shon tme frame. As a resull, the fair value of these balances is
considered to be materially equal 1o the camryving valwe, after taking inte account potential impaimment losses.

15 Financial risk mamagement and impairment of fnancial assels

The company is exposed to the followig risks from itz use of financial mstruments:
+ eredit risk:

= liquadity risk; and

= market nisk

Credit risk and inpairment

Credit nisk arises i relation to acoounts receivable, swrplus cash held in bank accounts or held on account with
other BlackRock group comganies as part of normal treasury operations, and other asset investments. The risk
of default in relation to accounts receivable anising from fee income debtors is considered low and the company
minimises exposme o credit risk with respect to accounts receivable by actively pursuing settlement of
outstanding management for involces and performance fees within the terms and conditions of the undertving
agreemnent. Intercomparry balances are managed centrally and agreed upon and settled on a regular basis.

The carrying amount of finawial assets disclosed in the statement of financial pesiticn represents the compay 'z
mEKImLm exposure o credit rsk as no collateral or credit enhancementz are held,

The company may in some situations be exposed to concentration of credit nsk due bo exposure (o some large
cliest=. These clients donot have external credit ratmgs.
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Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

15 Financial risk management and impairment of Mnancal assets (continued)

Financial assets at falr value through profit or loss eredit risk exposure and management

Derivative fincciol aosels af fur vale Srough profit and foss held for iroding

Maxinmm  Provision for

2018 amount of doubiful c“‘:ﬂ:ﬁ
EXposure deht

S00d S000 000

Foreigm exchange forward contracts 1 - 1

Maxinmum  Provision For

2017 armeunt of doubiful Cir:‘::%
EXposiure debt

S000 S0 S0

Foreign exchange forward contracts 1 - |

At the stabement of fnancial position date, foreizn exchange forward contracts were in place to hedee the
transactional foreign exchange exqpesure of the entity, These forwards have a tenor of less than one month.,

Loxues eond peceivaldes credil risk exposure aoid mvmnagement

Maximmm  Provision for

018 arrioannl ol dioailyt Fial C“:TI'I:E
exposure debit
000 SO0 000
Cach amd cash equivalents 3411 - 341
Trade and other receivables 2637 - 2637
6,048 L &, 048
Maxinmm  Provision for Carryin
2017 armount of dioubyt ful E
value
EXPOSIre deht
000 SO0 bAL ]
Cash anid cash equivalents 38X - 3,820
“Trade and other recenvables 1,948 . 1,948
3,768 = 5,768

Collegeral held v security amnd otfer delit e iiance s
The comparry does not hold any collateral as security or any other credit enhancements,

Page 29

180/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

BlackHock Fund Management Company 5. A.

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

15 Financial risk management and impairment of Mnancal assets (continued)

Credit raiing analysis

Standard & Poor's credit ratings have been wsed to determine the credit quality of the entitv's cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other receivables. Cash at bank is rated AA- and trade and other receivables are nod
rated.

Financial assels at amortised cost
Carrving Carrying Carrving

value of vahie of value of Pre Impakrment
2018 Items nether items past items past  impalrment  recogndsed (o
past due mor  due bl nod due andior value date
onpair ed impaired impaired
5000 S000 000 S0 S000
Loans and receivables 6,048 - - 6,048 -

Carrving Carrving Carrving

value of value of value of Pre  Impairment
017 items neither items past items past  impairment  recogmised to
past due mor  doe bul not due and'or value date
Ingpaired Impaired Impalred

3000 S0 000 000 SO0

Loans and receivables
5,768 . B 5,768 -
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BlackHock Fund Management Company 5. A.

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

15 Financial risk management and impairment of Mnancal assets (continued)

Market risk
Market risk iz the nisk that the company s capital and'or camings may be impacted by changes in interest rates,
foreign exchange rates and security prices.

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange rigk arizes where the comparmy’s foreign cumency assets are nol matched by liabilitics
demominated in the same curency. The company derives revenses from investment advisory, adminitration and
distribution fees denominated in US dollar. Expenses are mainly denominated in euro and as a consequence the
compainy s reveries may Nuctuste as a resilt of euro and US dollar exchange moverments,

Forelgn aurency exposures are monitored regularly and minmmised Forelgn curmrency exposures thal anse in
relation to non-operational items are usually large in nature and are managed on a case-by-case basis. Foreign
currency expesures relating to mtercompary pavables and receivables with other BlackRock group entities are
managed utilising foreign exchange forward contracts,

Sensifivity calvsis

The semsitivity analysis covers the financial instruments ai each of the statement of financial position dates and
assumes changes i market variables, It should however be noted that due to the mherent uncerainty in world
fmancial markets, the assumgtions made may differ significantly from the aciual cutcome particularly as merket
risks tend to be nterdependent and are therefore unlikely to move in isolation.

Furo exchange rates are assumed o increase of decrease by 200 20%% is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk intemally to key management persommel and represents msanagement’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.

If the euro exchange rate strengthened by 2024 profit and equity would decrease by 341k,
If the euro exchange rate weakened by 2004, profit and equity would increase by S45k
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Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

16 Related party transactions

The transacticns with related parties that occurred during the vear related to service charges with other entities

comtrodled by the ultimate parent undertaking,
Income and receivaldes lrom related parties

2018
Amounts receivable from related party

2017
Amounis receivable from related party

Expenditure with and payables to related parties

2018
Outsoureed investment management and refrocessions
Other cxpenses

Amounts pavable Lo related party

017
Outsoureed invetment management services and retrocessions
Other expenses

Amounts payable to related party

Parent
5 000

Fellow
subsidinries
£ 0

336

Fellow
suibrel dinries
LI

Fellow
subsidinries
£ i

14,278
9
14377
1,185

Fellow
subsidinries
£ 0o

8820

102

8922

172

1.281

There were no loans (o the manager or board of directors or any other related party during the vear,
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Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

17 Restatement of comparatives

As outlined in note 2, the company has adepted IFRS 15 in these financial statements, with the prior period
restated in accordance with I45 § Accounting Policies, Charges in Accowding Estimaies and Ervors, The
following table smmmarises ihe impact of these restatements on the figures presented within the income

slatemment,
For the year ended 2017 Privoaty:  Adiustmmnt

reported i) Restated

£ 0o £ (1w £ 0D

Revenue 1.149 12,135 13,284
Cost of =ales - {12,135} {12,135}
Groes profit 1,149 1,149
Administrative expenses (145) (145)
Operating profit 10084 1004

{1} For the period ended 31 December 2017, reveue was presented net of investment management and
administration services charges and refrocessions from other group companies. As outlmed in note 2, under
IFRS 15, revenue iz presented gross, There has been no impact on the operating profit,

18 Parent and wtimste parent undertaking

The company’s immediate holding company is BlackReck Group Limited - Luxembourg Branch and the
ultimate parent company and controlling party is BlackRock, Inc. a comgany incorporated in the State of
Delaware in the United States of America. The parent compamy of the largest and smallest group that includes
the compary and for which group accountz are prepared is BlackRogk, Ine. Copies of the group financial
statements are available upon request from the Investor Relations website at www. blackrock.com or requests
may be addressed to Investor Relations at 55 East 52nd Street, New Yook, NY 10055, USA or by anml at

invrelitb lackrock com
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¢!

BlackRock Asset Management lreland Limited

2018 12 125,000 1,723
2019
137.82
1995 19
BlackRock, Inc.

(¢

BlackRock Financial Management, Inc.

31,362 4,297
1988

(€

State Street Bank Luxembourg S.C.A.
2019 65,001,137.50 79 1,324

2019 31
121.74
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4 J.P. Morgan Bank Luxembourg S.A.

2018 12 17,376,810 19 33

1973

€ BlackRock

Operations (Luxembourg) S.a r.l1.)

2019 2,623,500 1,938

(6
BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited

2018 11 94,484,948 130

@

2019 8,000
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G

2019 83,140
©

2019 125,167
(10

2019 5,251
11

2019 6,695
(12

2019 2,280
(13

2019 6,000
(14

2019 40,500
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(15

2019 3,307
(16

2019 3,000
17

2019 3,000
(18

2019 1,250
(19

2019 1,250
(20

2019 48,323
1

2019 3,000
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a

BlackRock Asset Management lreland Limited

(¢

BlackRock Financial Management, Inc.

G
State Street Bank Luxembourg S.C.A.

(b

2013

http://www.statestreet.com/about/office-locations/luxembourg/subcustodians.html
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4 J.P. Morgan Bank Luxembourg S.A.

@ BlackRock
Operations (Luxembourg) S.a r.1I.

(6
BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited

BlackRock (Channel Islands)
Limited 1972 10

¢
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1993 1993
2010 2010 12 17
2007 13
2011 2011 61
2013 12
2009 65 78 2010 159
2009 65 2010
2010
2010 16
2009 65
2010 15
2009 65

2014 23 2014 91
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1988 1983
25 1915
1983 25 85 611
1988 30
2002 12 20 2002
2001 107 2001 108
2007 13 2007
1991
2012 26
2010
2009 13 2009 65
2009 65
2010
° 2011 2010
2012
2010 159
e 2011 2002 2010
2012
o 2011 2010
2012
e 2010 2011
° 2013 15

2010
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° 2016 18
2016 10 2016
e 2015 12 18
2016 438 2016 24
2016 10 13
° 14 587 2016 10 13
16 644
°
e 2010
° 2010
°
2016 438
2016 10 13
2018
°
2016 18

2016 18
199/288



1.1.

1.1.1.

1.1.2.

1.1.3.

1.1.4.

18

2010

2010

2010

2010

2010

2010

EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)

Y e o o
2016 18

2016

33

2016 10

2010
2009 65

2010 41

200/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2010
1.1.5.
2010
fonds commun de placement ( ),contractual common fund
investment companies
2010 1915
1.2.
1.2.1.
2010
2010 12
2010 11
2010 91
91 75
2010 11 23

2010 91

201/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1,250,000

2,500,000

(b
(c
(d

(e
(f
(9

(h
(i

2016 27

1.2.1.1.

202/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1993

2010
2010

2006 73 16

2010

203/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1.2.1.2.

1.4.2. (15
1.4.1. (1

1.2.2.
1915 sociétés

anonymes

204/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1.2.2.1.
2010

société anonyme
1915 2010

2010
30

125
60 250

1.2.2.2.

205/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1.2.2.3.
1.2.1.1.
2010

1.2.2.4.

1.2.1.2.
1.2.2.5.

2010 27
¢! 2009 65

(a 12

(b

(c

206/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(d 2010
(e 2010
Q@ 1.4.2. (15 (16 2009 65
G 2009 65
1.3. 2010
2010 41 52
2010
41 52
Qa
10
Q@ 2009 65

2009 65

207/288



€

4

(G

2011

18

14 592

@

@

30

Q

13 559
2014

EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10

12

¢! G

11 512

2013

13 559 2014 10

2014 937
2010 12 17

2010

208/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10,000,000
78 660
(6
(7
(8
O (a
2009 16
1060 2009 (b)
(b
(c
(10 (e
(10
(10
(10 (a
10
20
3 10
(b
40

209/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(a 20
(c (a
35
(d (a
25
80
(e (c (d (b
40
(a (b (c (d
@ b ( (d
35
83 349
20
(11 (15 (10
20
35
(12 (a (10
100

210/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(10 (11

30
(b (a 35

(c (a
35

(13 (a (2

20

(b
30

(10

(c

(14 (a

(o ¢
€ (11

211/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(c
(d
(15 (a 2010
2009 65
(b
10
10
2010
25
10
(c (a (b
(10 (13 (15
(a ¢ (10
(13 (16
(16 (a
1.3.
aw (@ Q2 @13
(b (a

(17 (a

212/288



EDINETOOOO

O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)

(b (a
10
10
15
(18 (a a ©
b (a
(19
G
2002 2008
2007 19
2008 19
2008
08 339 2002
2002
339 2008 11 26
2008
2011 30
08 339
08 339
2013 18
12 18
13 559

13 559

213/288

Ooooooooooooooooooad

10
10
10
@ @ €
@ @
2007
2007 16
2002
08 339 08 339
2010
2008
08
08 380
08 356 08 356
11 512
2012
13 559



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

° 13 559
13 559
° 13 559
° 13 559
13 559
° 13 559
° 13 559
° 13 559
13 559 2010 44 20 30
2014
2014 937
30
20
2012 12 18
2014 937
2014 30 14 592
13 559

2010 91 2010 96

214/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

91 75

10
10
10

215/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1.4.
2010 16
2010 15
1.4.1. 2010 16
125 126 16
@
2010 16
(¢
125,000
625,000
2010 129

216/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

G

4

G 2010 16

12
2010 16

2010
2010

(6
@

¢

(€

1.4.2. 2010 15
101 124 2010 15

(1 2010 15
2010

(¢ 2009 65

2009
65
2010

217/288



G

(a

¢

2

(4 1993

G

(6

(a

¢

(c

(d
(e
(f

250,000,000

G (a

2010

21

15

37

50

EDINETOOOO

O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

37

125,000

250,000,000

0.02

218/288

2010

1€

129

(a

10,000,000

2006 49



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@

(8

(© 2010 15

(a 12

(b
(c
(d G (a 2006
49 1993
(e 2010
(f 2010
2010 116

(10

1993 18

(11

(12 ¢! (6
G (a

(13
2009 65

(a

219/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(b

(14 @B (a
€ 1993 97
2000 27

(15
(16 2010 15

(a

(b

(c

220/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(d

(f

(17

2010 53

(18 2010 15
2010

2010
(19 2009 65

2010
(20 2010 15

2010

2018 23 2012 10 24 12
546 18 698 18 698
18 698 16 17

18 698 12 546

12 546 18 698

18 698
12 546

18 698

221/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

18 698 18 698

18 698

18 698

16 17

18 698

222/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2010
2.1.
2.1.1. 1915
1915 10 2010
société
anonyme
2.1.1.1. 1915 420
30,000.0
2.1.1.2. 1915 420 15
1915
X1
X
X
X
2.1.1.3. 1915 420 17

223/288



2.1.1.4.

2.1.1.5.

2.1.1.6.

2014

2014

18

1915

EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1915 420 19 420 20
25
1915
1915 430
2014 28 1915 430
) )
)
18 2016 18
Caisse de Consignation
18 2016 18
2016

2016 23

2016 23

comité de direction
directeur général

224/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10
10 20
10 10
20
Xi 15
X
société par actions simplifiée
2.1.2.
2009 65 2010 2010 43
2010 12 22 No.10
2009 65 2010 2010 44 2010
12 22 No.10

2011 15 11 509

225/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2017 12
21
14 592 2014 30 2014
2.1.3.
2010 129 130
tribunal administratif
1945 10 17 1983 20
Institut Monétaire Luxembourgeois
1998 22 1998 12 23
2010 133
2010 150
2010 159
2012 2002 109
2010 159

2010

226/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2.1.4. 2010
2010 129
2010 129
2010
2009 65 2009 65
2010 123
2010 129 2010
2010
2010 15
2010 27

2005 05 177

227/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2010

2010 153
1915 461
1915
2010 154
réviseur d"entreprises agréé
2004 02 81
réviseur d"entreprises agréé
02
81
2010 155
2010 147

97 136 08 348 2010

228/288



2.1.5. 2016
2016

2.1.6.

2017

15 627

10

5,000,000
5,000,000

30

EDINETOOOO

O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)

08 348

229/288

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2015 12

1915 10 2010

50,000

10



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2017
30
18 2018 30

2017 13

2017 12 31

105 95

2.2.
2.2.1.
2010

2.2.1.1.

230/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2.2.1.2.

2.2.1.3.

2.2.2.
2.2.2.1.

2010 145

Caisse de Consignation
2.2.2.2.
2010 143
2.2.2.1.
2.3.
2.3.1.

2.3.1.1. droit d*apport
2002 128 2003 14 2010

231/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2.3.1.2. taxe d"abonnement
2010 174
0.05
2010 174 0.01
2010

2010 174 2010 41

2003 14

12

2010 175

90

2010 175

2010 175

232/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2.3.2.

2013 15
2010 .

233/288



2007

125,000

EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

13 2007 13
2012 26
1991 19
2010
2003 71
2006 48 2004 39
2001 107
2010
07 309

30

234/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

30
3.1.
3.1.1.
2.2.1
2.2.2
2010
1915
3.1.2.
3.1.3.
1,250,000
12 2010

235/288



3.2.

4.1.

4.2.

2010

2010

EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2010

2010

2010

236/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

4.3.
No.15 07 42 () (@)
4.4.
2012 2013 30
4.5.
réviseur d"entreprises agréé
4.6.
4.7.

2007 13 42
No.15 07

237/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2016
2017 12
21

0.01 2010
0.05
2010

2013 15

238/288



2013 15
2010
2013 13
10
11
12
13
2013
1.1. 2013
2008
2014
2.1.
2010 12

17

22

EDINETOOOO

O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)

2008 11

239/288

20

2010 11 11

2013

2007

Ooooooooooooooooooad

12

13



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2004 15

(39)
2009 65

2.2.

2.3.

2.3.1.
2.3.2.
2.3.3.

2013 22

2016

2.4.

240/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

3.1.

3.2.

4.1.

4.2.
4.2.1.

241/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

4.2.2.

4.2.3.

18 698
4.2.4.

242/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

4.2.5.

4.2.6.

10 20 30 50 75

4.2.7.

300,000 150,000
250,000,000 0.02 10,000,000

50

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

243/288



5.4.

5.5.

5.6.

EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

244/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

5.7.

5.8.

5.9.

5.9.1.

5.9.2.

6.1.

245/288



6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

7.1.

EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

246/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

7.2.
7.2.1.

7.2.2.

2006 48

7.2.3.
letter-box entity

7.3.
7.3.1.

7.3.2.

247/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

7.3.3.

8.1.

8.2.

8.2.1.

248/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

8.2.2.

8.2.3.

249/288



8.3.

8.4.

EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

250/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10

10.1.
2013 22

10.2.
2015

2018

10.3.
2015

251/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2015

2015

2015

2018

252/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2016 23
2016 23
2.1.
125,000
575 2013 2004 39
2009 65 2011 61
3.1.

3.2.

253/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

4.1.

3.1.1
4.2.

3.1.1
société en commandite spéciale
1915

6.1.
6.2.

1,250,000 12

6.3.

254/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

7.1.
21

7.2.
2002
12 19 29 30

2002 12 19 56
57
20

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

2005
10

0.01

50 50

9.1.

255/288



9.2.

9.3.

2017

16

2019

2004

21

EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

48

15 06 241

2017 20 2018 21

256/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2.1.
2.1.1.
2018
2019 12 31 32
32 2019 12 31 2019
12 31
2.1.2.
2.1.3.

257/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2.1.4.

2.2.
2.2.1.

2.2.2.

2017 653
2.2.3.

2.2.4. 2021

2016 12

2017 13
2017 13

258/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2016 28 2018
@
(b
©
(D
2018
2019
2018
2016 30 2020
2020

2018 23

259/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1,000,000
10
500,000

2017 12 28 2017/2402

21

12

12

260/288



12

EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

12

261/288



Q

Q@

@3

4
G

(6

EDINETOOOO

O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)

262/288

37

Société Anonyme

Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2010 2010 12 17
2013
2013 12
1996
10 1997 10 13
2011
2011
61
2013 257
(i i
iii

263/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019
17

2016
18

2000
2001

264/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2010

265/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

20
SMMF
100
2017
14
2017 1131
2009 65 ()
2007 16

11

266/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

397

Undertaking for Collective
Investment

2009 65

267/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1933

268/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

269/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2015 2015 2365

270/288



EDINETOOOO

O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

10

50 20 50

25

25

15

10

271/288

50

40



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2018 31
2018 31
2016 23 2016 23
Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier CSSF

I1SA

CSSF
IESBA Code

272/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2016 23 CSSF
1SA

2016 23 CSSF I1SA

273/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2018 25

274/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

To the Unitholders of BlackRock Global Investment Series

REPORT OF THE REVISEUR D"ENTREPRISES AGREE

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of BlackRock Global Investment Series (the "Fund")
and each of its sub-funds, which comprise the Statement of Net Assets and the Portfolio of
Investments as at 31 January 2018 and the Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of BlackRock Global Investment Series as at 31 January 2018, and of the
results of its operations and changes in its net assets for the year then ended in
accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory requirements relating to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 on the audit profession
(Law of 23 July 2016) and with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs) as adopted for
Luxembourg by the "Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier" (CSSF).

Our responsibilities under those Law and standards are further described in the
"Responsibilities of Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé for the Audit of the Financial Statements"
section of our report. We are also independent of the Fund in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities under those ethical requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Other information

The Board of Directors of the Management Company of the Fund is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report
but does not include the financial statements and our report of Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
concluded that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report this fact. We have nothing to report in this regards.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors of the Management Company of the Fund and Those
Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors of the Management Company of the Fund is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Luxembourg
legal and regulatory requirements relating to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements, and for such internal control as the Board of Directors of the
Management Company of the Fund determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Management Company of
the Fund is responsible for assessing the Fund®s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors of the Management Company of the Fund
either intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Responsibilities of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé for the Audit of the Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a
report of Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
the Law of 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

276/288



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

As part of an audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for
Luxembourg by the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund"s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors of the
Management Company of the Fund.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors of the Management Company of the
Fund®s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Fund"s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
report of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report of the
Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

For Deloitte Audit, Cabinet de Révision Agréé

Christian van Dartel, Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé
Partner

25 May 2018
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To the Unitholders of

BlackRock Global Investment Series

35A, avenue J.F. Kennedy

L-1855 Luxembourg

Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

REPORT OF THE REVISEUR D"ENTREPRISES AGREE

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of BlackRock Global Investment Series (the* Fund” )
and of each of its sub-funds, which comprise the statement of net assets and the portfolio
of investments as at 31 January 2019 and the statement of operations and changes in net
assets for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Fund and of each of its sub-funds as at 31 January 2019, and of
the results of their operations and changes in their net assets for the year then ended in
accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory requirements relating to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 on the audit profession
(Law of 23 July 2016) and with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs) as adopted for
Luxembourg by the Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier (CSSF). Our
responsibilities under the Law of 23 July 2016 and ISAs are further described in the

“ Responsibilities of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé for the Audit of the Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are also independent of the Fund in accordance with
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities under those ethical requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Other information

The Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information stated in the annual report but
does not include the financial statements and our report of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report this fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors of the Fund®s Management Company for the
Financial Statements

The Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company is responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Luxembourg legal and
regulatory requirements relating to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements, and for such internal control as the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management
Company determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management
Company is responsible for assessing the Fund®s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company either
intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Responsibilities of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé for the Audit of the Financial
Statements

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue a report of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the Law dated 23 July 2016 and with I1SAs as adopted for
Luxembourg by the CSSF will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with the Law dated 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted
for Luxembourg by the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund"s internal control;

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors of the
Fund®s Management Company;

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management
Company®s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Fund"s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
report of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report of the
Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to
cease to continue as a going concern;

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

For Deloitte Audit, Cabinet de révision agréé

Justin Griffiths, Réviseur d"entreprises agréé
Partner

23 May 2019
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.
Independent Auditor®s Report

To the sole Shareholder of
BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

REPORT OF THE REVISEUR D"ENTREPRISES AGREE

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A., which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, the income statement,
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A. as at 31 December 2018, and
of its financial performance and of its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 on the audit profession
(Law of 23 July 2016) and with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs) as adopted for
Luxembourg by the* Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier” (CSSF). Our
responsibilities under those Law and standards are further described in the

“ Responsibilities of the* Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé” for the Audit of the Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are also independent of the Company in accordance with
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities under those ethical requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.
Independent Auditor®s Report

Other information

The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information stated in the annual report but does not include the financial
statements and our report of the" Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé” thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report this fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and for such
internal control as the Board of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing
the BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A."s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Responsibilities of the* Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé” for the Audit of the Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a
report of the" Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé” that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with the Law of 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.
Independent Auditor®s Report

As part of an audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for
Luxembourg by the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company®s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.
Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors® use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the BlackRock
Fund Management Company S.A."s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our report of
the" Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé” to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report of the
“ Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé” . However, future events or conditions may cause the
BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A. to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The management report is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements.

For Deloitte Audit, Cabinet de Révision Agréé

Justin Griffiths, Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé
Partner

3 May 2019
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